
 

 

 

Mark James  LLM, DPA, DCA 
Prif Weithredwr, 
Chief Executive, 
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin.  SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen.  SA31 1JP 
 

 

 

 

 

DYDD MAWRTH 22AIN RHAGFYR 2015 
 
 

AT:  HOLL AELODAU’R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU DIOGELU’R 

CYHOEDD A’R AMGYLCHEDD  

 

 

YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU CYFARFOD 

O’R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU DIOGELU’R CYHOEDD A’R 

AMGYLCHEDD SYDD I’W GYNNAL YN Y SIAMBR, 3 HEOL 

SPILMAN, CAERFYRDDIN AM 10:00YB AR DDYDD LLUN, 11
EG

  

O IONAWR 2016, ER MWYN CYFLAWNI’R MATERION A 

AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA ATODEDIG. 

 

 

 

 

Mark James 
 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 
 

 

 

AILGYLCHWCH OS GWELWCH YN DDA 
 

 

Swyddog Democrataidd: Matthew Hughes 

Ffôn (Llinell Uniongyrchol): 01267 224029  

Ffacs: 01267 224911 

E-bost: mahughes@sirgar.gov.uk  

Cyf: AD016-001 
 

Pecyn Dogfennau



 

 
 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU DIOGELU’R CYHOEDD 

A’R AMGYLCHEDD 

14 AELOD 
 
 
 

GRŴP PLAID CYMRU – 5 AELOD 
   
1. Cynghorydd A. Davies 
2. Cynghorydd W.J. Lemon 
3. Cynghorydd A.D.T. Speake 
4. Cynghorydd S.E. Thomas 
5. Cynghorydd D.E. Williams 
   
   
GRŴP ANNIBYNNOL – 4 AELOD 
   
1. Cynghorydd D.B. Davies 
2. Cynghorydd J.A. Davies 
3. Cynghorydd I.J. Jackson (Is-Gadeirydd)  
4. Cynghorydd A. James 
   
   
GRŴP LLAFUR – 4 AELOD 
   
1. Cynghorydd A.P. Cooper (Cadeirydd)  
2. Cynghorydd D.C. Evans 
3. Cynghorydd K.P. Thomas 
4. Cynghorydd W.G. Thomas 
   
   

HEB GYSYLLTIAD PLEIDIOL – 1 AELOD 
   
1. Cynghorydd J.P. Jenkins 

  
 



 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA   
 

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB   

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL   

3. DATGAN CHWIPIAID PLAID SYDD WEDI EU GWAHARDD   

4. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD (DIM WEDI DOD I LAW)   

5. EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL  5 - 6 

6. UNED CADWRAETH GWLEDIG - DIWEDDARIAD  7 - 24 

7. PRIFFYRDD - Y NEWYDDION DIWEDDARAF  25 - 34 

8. GRŴP GORCHWYL A GORFFEN DIOGELU’R CYHOEDD A’R 
AMGYLCHEDD 2015/16 - DOGFEN CYNLLUNIO A CHWMPASU  

35 - 42 

9. LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR, COFNODION CYFARFOD Y 
PWYLLGOR A GYNHALWYD AR Y 12FED O DACHWEDD 2015  

43 - 50 

10. LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR, COFNODION CYFARFOD Y 
PWYLLGOR A GYNHALWYD AR Y 11EG O RAGFYR 2015  

51 - 58 

 
 
 

 

 

 



Mae’r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 
 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL & PUBLIC PROTECTION 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

11
th

 JANUARY 2016 
 
 

Forthcoming items for next meeting –  
Friday 26th February 2016 

 
 

 
Discussion Topic 
 

 
Background 

 
Impact of Local 
Authority Trading 
Standards in 
Challenging Times 
 

 
On 21st March 2015, the UK Government 
published a research report entitled ‘The Impact of 
Local Authority Trading Standards in Challenging 
Times.’ The report highlights examples of best 
practice, where local authorities have found new 
ways of working to improve efficiency, but it also 
contains important messages for the future about 
the adverse impact of budget cuts on trading 
standards services. This item will provide the 
Committee with an opportunity to consider and 
comment on the report and its recommendations. 
 

 
Budget Monitoring 
2015/16 
 

 
This standard quarterly item enables members to 
undertake their monitoring role of the Environment 
Department, Public Protection Services and 
Community Safety Team’s revenue and capital 
budgets. 
 

 
Actions & Referrals 
Update 
 

 
This quarterly report provides an update on 
progress made in relation to actions and requests 
from previous meetings. 
 

 

Eitem Rhif  5

Tudalen 5



Tudalen 6

Mae’r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 
 
 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU DIOGELU’R CYHOEDD 

A’R AMGYLCHEDD 

11
eg

 O IONAWR 2016 
 
 

Uned Cadwraeth Gwledig – Diweddariad  
 

 

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt: 
 

• Bod y Pwyllgor yn ystyried y diweddariad ar weithgaredd yr Uned Cadwraeth Gwledig 
yn ystod 2015, ac yn cyflwyno sylwadau arno.  

  

Rhesymau:  
 

• Er mwyn cyflwyno’r newyddion diweddaraf ar waith y gwasanaeth i’r Pwyllgor a 
galluogi aelodau i gyflawni eu dyletswyddau craffu ynghylch monitro perfformiad.  

 

 
Angen cyfeirio’r mater at y Bwrdd Gweithredol er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad:  
NAC OES 
 

 

 
Aelod y Bwrdd Gweithredol sy’n gyfrifol am y Portffolio:  
Cyng. Meryl Gravell (Adfywio ac Hamdden)  
 

 
 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Amgylchedd  
 
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 
Llinos Quelch  
 
 
Awdur yr adroddiad: 
Rosie Carmichael  
 

 
Swyddi: 
 
 
 
Pennaeth Cynllunio  
 
 
 
Rheolydd Cadwraeth Gwledig 

 
Rhifau Ffôn / Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 
 
 
 
01267 228918 
lquelch@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
 
01267 228727 
racarmichael@sirgar.gov.uk 
 

 
  

Eitem Rhif  6

Tudalen 7



 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL & PUBLIC PROTECTION 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

11
th

 JANUARY 2016 
 
 

Rural Conservation Unit Update 
  

 

 
The report highlights the activities carried out by the Rural Conservation Unit in 2015, and 
its purpose is to inform Committee of these. 
 
The Rural Conservation Unit promotes the understanding, conservation, enhancement, 
and responsible management of Carmarthenshire’s natural resources, including its 
landscapes and its habitats and species, consistent with Carmarthenshire’s Integrated 
Community Strategy and Carmarthenshire County Council’s core values. 
 
The Unit carries out the following statutory functions: 
 

• Tree Preservation Orders – Town & Country Planning (Trees) Regulations 1999  

• Hedgerow Regulations 1997  

• Commons Registration Act 1965 
 
It also works to ensure that the Council’s operations are compliant under the Natural 
Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006.  
 
The Unit provides specialist advice to development management, to other officers in the 
council and to the general public on woodlands, trees, hedgerows, common land 
biodiversity and landscape. It ensures that approved development, and other projects 
comply with relevant legislation and the various policies that relate to the natural 
environment in the Local Development Plan (LDP). The Unit runs practical conservation 
projects such as the Caeau Mynydd Mawr Special Area of Conservation (SAC).  
 
The Unit works effectively with partners such as Natural Resource Wales, West Wales 
Biodiversity Information Centre, Dyfed Archaeological Trust, Butterfly Conservation and 
the Wildlife Trusts. It has also worked collaboratively with local authorities in both 
Pembrokeshire and Swansea.  
 
A detailed overview of the work of the Unit is attached. 
 

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? 

 
YES  
 

 
  

Tudalen 8



 

 
 
 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report.  
  
Signed:    Llinos Quelch  

 
Head of Planning   

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets  

 
NONE  
 

 
NONE  
 

 
NONE  
 

 
NONE  
 

 
NONE  
 

 
NONE  
 

 
NONE  
 

 
 
 
 
 

CONSULTATIONS 

 
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below: 
  
Signed:    Llinos Quelch  

 
Head of Planning   

 
1. Local Member(s) – N/A 
 
2. Community / Town Council – N/A 
 
3. Relevant Partners – N/A 
 
4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – All staff within the section 
have contributed to this report. 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THERE ARE NONE   
 

Title of 
Document 
 

File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public 
inspection 

  

 

Tudalen 9



Tudalen 10

Mae’r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Rural Conservation Business Unit Annual Report 2015 to the Environmental & 

Public Protection Scrutiny Committee 

 

1. Introduction  

 

Carmarthenshire’s landscapes and its habitats and species are some of the county’s most 

important natural resources.  They make up the green infrastructure which provides a 

framework for our social, economic and environmental health. The Rural Conservation 

Business Unit promotes the understanding, conservation, enhancement, and responsible 

management of these resources, consistent with Carmarthenshire’s Integrated Community 

Strategy and CCC’s core values. The Unit directly contributes to the delivery of Outcomes 

F1, F3 and F4 within the Council’s Improvement Plan 2014/15 (for further details see table 

at the end of this report).  

 

The Unit provides advice to development management, other CCC departments and the 

general public on landscape, trees, woodlands, hedgerows, biodiversity, common land and 

on development within the Caeau Mynydd Mawr SPG area. It is also instrumental in 

ensuring that approved developments and other projects comply with relevant legislation 

and meet the various policies that relate to the natural environment in the Local 

Development Plan.  

 

The Rural Conservation Business Unit carries out the following statutory functions: 

 

• Tree Preservation Orders - Town and Country Planning (Trees) Regulations 1999  

• Hedgerow Regulations 1997 

• Commons Registration Act 1965 

 

It also works to ensure that the Council’s operations are compliant under the Natural 

Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006.  

 

 

2. Coed Cymru  

 

Coed Cymru is a partnership of organisations (including local authorities, Welsh 

Government and Natural Resources Wales) dedicated to bringing Welsh native woodlands 

into sustainable management and creating new native woodlands in appropriate locations. 

Carmarthenshire County Council employs two Coed Cymru officers, one full-time and one 

part-time, totalling 1.6 posts currently 60% funded by Natural Resources Wales and Welsh 

Government. Coed Cymru officers advise on the whole spectrum of issues from the 

planting of new trees through to the management of existing woodland for biodiversity, 

amenity and the production of high quality Welsh timber products. Officers also provide 

advice and support in the management of woodland on the Council estate and assist the 

Arboricultural Officer in ensuring that the Council meets its statutory obligations for 

responsible tree management. 

 

In 2014/15 in addition to the above activities Coed Cymru officers delivered the Welsh 

Government Nature Fund Soil, Water and Conservation project in Carmarthenshire. This 

involved the preparation of 5-year farm plans for participating land owners and the 

administration of payments for activities including: creating shelterbelts, restoring 

Tudalen 11



hedgerows, fencing riparian zones and improving farm buildings and yards to prevent dirty 

water polluting watercourses. 

 

In 2014/15 Carmarthenshire Coed Cymru Officers realised the following outputs: 

 

• 179 woodland advisory visits made; 

• 8 Glastir Woodland Management plans and 30 Nature Fund project plans approved; 21 

other management plans prepared (including Glastir Woodland Management and 

Creation schemes in preparation) 

• 66 woodland management and tree planting schemes managed with a total of 77 ha 

(192 acres) of woodland brought into management;  

• Over £80,000 in NRW grant payments claimed by local farmers and land owners, 

resulting in 409 contractor days being worked; 

• 14 promotion shows and events attended; 

• 9 tree safety surveys completed on Council properties. 

• Preparation of felling licence application for woodland management at Pembrey 

Country Park and provision of advice for Llyn Llech Owain Country Park woodland 

management and habitat restoration projects. 

 

In 2014/15, in addition to a continuation of the work above, Coed Cymru officers are 

advising on habitat restoration projects at Pembrey Country Park and Llyn Llech Owain 

Country Park and are assisting the rangers there in planning woodland operations and 

preparing felling licence applications and environmental impacts assessments. 

 

 

3. Common Land 

 

Carmarthenshire has the third largest area of Common Land in Wales, some 15,000ha 

(37,000 acres) covering 6.35% of the County. The county has 120 commons and village 

greens, and there 49 ownerless commons in Carmarthenshire which the local authority has 

the power to protect.  

 

The Authority has a statutory duty to keep and maintain a register of common land under 

the Commons Registration Act 1965 and the Commons Act 2006. Part 1 of the Commons 

Act 2006 requires commons registration authorities to update the common land registers 

by recording past changes which may not have been recorded under the Commons 

Registration Act 1965. Commons registration authorities will have significant new powers 

to correct the many mistakes which exist in the current registers.  It is anticipated that the 

Welsh Government will implement Part 1 of the Act in 2016. 

 

This year we have carried out 39 apportionments and 637 common land searches, and the 

Common Land officer has had 15 meetings with members of the public who wish to inspect 

the register.  

 

Carmarthenshire’s Common Land officer is the only Welsh director of ACRA (Association 

for Commons Registration Authorities) which provides advice and guidance to our 

members with regard to all matters relating to the registration and management of 

common land and village greens.   He is also a member of the Commons Act 2006 Advisory 

Tudalen 12



Group which provides advice and guidance to the Welsh Government with regard to the 

implementation of the Commons Act in Wales. 

 

Over the last 12 months the Common Land officer has also been closely involved in the 

Resilient Ecosystem funded Carmarthenshire Bogs Project that attracted £20,000 of grant 

aid from the Welsh Government. All six sites covered by this project are areas of common 

land with no known owners; as such the County Council is expected to protect these sites 

from illegal activities. The officer has provided the project and local communities with 

advice on the legal aspects of common land and has been able to advise on approaches to 

management. Following on from the Bryn Llewellyn public inquiry the officer is similarly 

involved in trying to improve the management of one (small) part of Llanllwni Mountain, 

where CCC acts in the interests of the landowner. Common Land is important natural 

resource within Carmarthenshire that supports a range of wildlife habitats as well as 

agricultural activities and is one to which the public have open access under the CROW Act 

2000. 

 

 

4. Trees 

 

The Council’s arboricultural officer is primarily concerned with managing 

Carmarthenshire’s 215 Tree Preservation Orders (TPOs), processing application for works 

to existing TPOs and placing new orders when appropriate, supervising contractors and 

taking enforcement action when trees have been removed without permission. He 

manages applications for works to trees in the conservation areas within Carmarthenshire, 

as well as dealing with queries from other departments, elected members and the general 

public. He comments on planning applications where trees are affected by proposals. The 

officer is also currently involved with two long running enforcement cases. 

 

The tree officer produces surveys and assists the head of planning with High Hedge cases 

that are covered by the anti social behaviour law. He assists the highway officers under the 

154 Highways Act advising on health and safety issues, and advises on planning 

applications that have impacts on trees.  

 

The Tree Safety Strategy is progressing and Education is contacting all head teachers asking 

them to inform the section of schools where there are trees on site that should be 

surveyed. Surveys of the country parks have also taken place this year and the 

Arboricultural Officer has completed further training in tree safety inspections.  

 

 

5. Hedgerows 

 

The Unit is responsible for implementing the Hedgerow Regulations 1997. It advises the 

public on applications to remove hedgerows, and carries out the hedgerow surveys 

required. It investigates instances of unauthorised removal, and carries out enforcement 

action where hedgerows have been removed without consent, and covers the appeals 

procedure. The Unit advises other CCC departments on projects where hedgerows may be 

affected, and provides advice to development managers regarding planning applications 

and hedgerows. Over the last 14 years the Unit has developed considerable expertise in 

translocating hedgerows, and where appropriate will encourage the retention of a hedge in 

Tudalen 13



a new position, rather than its removal. In 2015 we have received 2 requests to remove 

hedgerows and have dealt with 8 enforcement cases, one of which involved the removal of 

over 1300m of hedgerow. 

 

 

6. Landscape 

 

Carmarthenshire’s landscapes, its uplands, river valleys and coasts, are justly recognised as 

being of high quality and the protection and enhancement of these landscapes are 

objectives of the LDP, the landscape officer’s role is to help to deliver these objectives.  

 

The landscape officer acts as an internal and external consultee and adviser on the 

landscape and visual aspects of development within the county. This role includes 

providing advice to development managers, planning applicants and agents on the 

following: - 

 

• the impact of proposed developments upon landscape character and visual amenity 

• the acceptability of  proposed development against landscape related planning policy 

• the requirements of appropriate landscape measures to mitigate for impacts of 

development 

• the requirements of landscape design schemes to deliver successful and attractive 

development 

 

The landscape officer also provides internal advice to other CCC departments, particularly 

in terms of potential development on council land. The officer is involved in the 

formulation of landscape policies and supplementary planning guidance within CCC’s 

Forward Planning Unit. In addition, as part of the Rural Conservation Business Unit, the 

landscape officer fulfils the role of providing direct advice to members of the public on 

rural and landscape issues.  

 

Renewable energy schemes – wind turbines and solar farms – have remained a  major part 

of his work load over the last 12 months, in addition to a large number of large scale 

residential, commercial and infrastructure projects, including addressing planning 

applications, and ongoing compliance monitoring for Cross Hands East and West, and 

Carmarthen West development areas.   

 

Previous collaborative work with the landscape officers from the other South Wales Local 

Authorities has led to the development of a number of guidance documents:  

 

• Planning Guidance for Wind Turbine Development Landscape and Visual Impact 

Assessment Requirements 

• Wind Turbine Development Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity Study – Methodology 

• Pembrokeshire and Carmarthenshire: Cumulative Impact of Wind Turbines on 

Landscape and Visual Amenity Guidance. 

 

In addition to these documents, within the last 12 months, the landscape officer has been 

involved in preparing the brief, commissioning and ongoing management of an additional 

study which will provide a landscape capacity and sensitivity assessment for wind turbine 

Tudalen 14



and field scale solar photovoltaic development for the county. The study is due for 

completion in early 2016. 

 

All of the recent guidance documents will underpin the forthcoming SPG for renewable 

energy; the landscape officer will play an important role in providing an input upon 

landscape and visual considerations within this SPG.  Development of the SPG will follow 

completion of the landscape capacity and sensitivity study. 

 

The landscape officer has established and maintains the CCC database and GIS mapping 

layer for all operational and approved wind turbine development within the county. This 

data forms the basis for assessment of ongoing sensitivity to cumulative development. 

 

The landscape officer is developing a series of Landscape Advice Notes which provide 

guidance on the landscape requirements for planning applications, and Landscape Design 

Guidance Notes which provide guidance on the content of the constituent elements of an 

approvable landscape design scheme for new development. These guidance documents 

are increasingly useful as part of the input required from the landscape officer within the 

pre-application consultation system currently encouraged by the Development 

Management Section 

 

The landscape officer is also on the steering group of a Seascape Character Assessment 

Study, covering the coastline between Pendine and Porthcawl Point. 

 

The landscape officer works closely with the Planning Ecologist to ensure that the 

interrelated issues of landscape and ecology are addressed consistently in consultation 

responses to planning applications. 

  

 

7. Caeau Mynydd Mawr SAC project 

 

This ground-breaking project has been developed to offset the impacts of development in 

the Cross Hands area on the European protected marsh fritillary butterfly. It has been put 

in place to demonstrate that the Council’s Local Development Plan is compliant with EU 

Habitat Regulations. It is funded by contributions from developments within the project 

area and will secure sufficient habitat to support the butterfly in this area through 

management agreements and land purchase.  

 

The marsh fritillary butterfly was once fairly widespread in the UK, but the number of 

places in which they are found has dropped by 60%. Areas of south and west Wales such as 

Cross Hands now hold the bulk of the UK’s population. It has been suggested by Natural 

Resources Wales that in 50 years time this area may support the only remaining population 

of this butterfly in Wales. 

 

The butterfly requires a network of marshy grassland to thrive, and the habitat which 

supports it supports a range of other scarce and protected species of birds, insects, reptiles 

and mammals, as such the project is of wide ranging benefit to biodiversity in the local 

area. The project involves the local community through work with local contractors and 

volunteers, and it provides opportunities to raise awareness of conservation in the area 

with local residents. 

Tudalen 15



 

In the last 12 months the project has continued to increase the area of habitat it manages 

through new agreements and habitat management operations. Key achievements include:- 

 

• Continued management of 10 sites, with 4 additional management agreements. One 

7ha site has been purchased by the project 

• Mowing to reduce the density of vegetation on neglected sites in preparation for 

grazing at 8 sites 

• Clearance of scrub encroaching on the grassland at 2 sites 

• Fencing installation and repair at 5 sites to facilitate grazing  

• Hedge laying at 1 site to facilitate grazing where fence installation was impractical 

• Drainage work at 3 sites to ensure they are safe for grazing stock, whilst remaining 

damp enough to support the marshy grassland habitat 

• Installation of track, access point or stock handling infrastructure was carried out at 5 

sites, assisting grazing management and ongoing habitat management  

• Provision of water for stock at 3 sites 

• 4 managed sites were grazed for the first time in a number of years and the results 

have been very promising 

• Working with volunteers from different organisations, Devil’s bit scabious seedlings 

grown by Aberystwyth University students have been planted out on 2 sites. This will 

increase the larval food resource at the sites and therefore increase the area of 

breeding habitat for the butterfly 

• The project is currently negotiating the purchase of 2 sites which will safeguard the 

habitat for the future. 

 

2015 was not a particularly good year for Marsh fritillary numbers due to unsettled 

weather, but despite this there were encouraging signs of habitat recovery on the site 

managed by the project. A survey showed that the butterfly is now breeding on one site 

where no evidence of this had been found in recent years, and a previously neglected site 

also revealed evidence of the butterfly’s presence. 

 

The project is monitored by the Council’s PIMS system and is on target to meet the March 

2016 milestone of managing 75ha of habitat that is suitable for the butterfly, some of 

which is on designated sites (SACs and SSSIs). At present there are 70.96ha of habitat in 

suitable condition for the butterfly. 

 

 

8. Biodiversity 

 

Biodiversity is a core component of sustainable development, underpinning economic 

development and prosperity, and has an important role to play in developing locally 

distinctive and sustainable communities consistent with the Integrated Community 

Strategy, and KIOP 5. The conservation and enhancement of biodiversity is vital in our 

response to climate change and in the delivery of key ecosystem services such as food, 

flood management, pollination and provision of clean air and water. The Council’s 

biodiversity work is also vital for the delivery of the Well-being and Future Generations 

(Wales) Act 2015 in Carmarthenshire, as it provides a mechanism for ensuring that the 

Council delivers the WG goal or delivering resilient ecosystems. 

  

Tudalen 16



 Contributing to the Integrated Community Strategy 

 

The Biodiversity provision within the Rural Conservation Unit contributes towards the 

following themes in the Integrated Community Strategy: 

 

• 4.3 Supporting opportunities for the building of economically viable and sustainable 

communities; 

...by working with and providing advice to local schools and communities to ensure that 

projects have realised their potential to integrate and enhance biodiversity as well as 

avoid adverse impacts on protected species and habitats (e.g. community at 

Pentregwenlais regarding management of the George V playing field and Tycroes 

school regarding management of their grassland for conservation and education 

potential). 

...by contributing to the development and implementation of a Green Infrastructure 

project that will help ensure that people are able to live, work in and visit a good 

quality environment and provide and enable opportunities for people to learn in, about 

and enjoy the environment. 

 

• 4.5 Protect, enhance and conserve our natural and built environment and champion 

biodiversity in the County; 

...by facilitating the production and implementation of the County's Local Biodiversity 

Action Plan (LBAP), which seeks to take positive action for a series of priority habitats 

and species in the county, raise awareness of the benefits of our natural environment 

and how people can get involved. It provides a secretariat for the Carmarthenshire 

LBAP Partnership and is instrumental in drawing down funding for projects that will 

conserve and enhance Carmarthenshire’s species and habitats, - £6000 in 2013–14 and 

£5400 in 2014–15. 

...by organising public events, walks and talks throughout the year, including during 

Wales Biodiversity Week in June and producing a biodiversity newsletter and 

maintaining the biodiversity pages on the CCC website. 

...by facilitating the NRW grant for LBAP projects - £6000 in 2013–14 and £5,400 in 

2014–15. 

 

• Developing resilient and sustainable communities; 

...through our work with other departments we ensure that CCC is compliant with the 

NERC Act 2006 and takes account of biodiversity in the carrying out  of all its functions. 

This contributes to the development of truly sustainable projects where social, 

economic and environmental factors are considered together.  The pollinator project in 

Llanelli demonstrates the biodiversity officer’s work with Housing...and together with 

Economic Development and Natural Resources Wales we have safeguarded and 

enhanced the water vole habitat in Berwick, Llanelli. 

 

Biodiversity Highlights 2015 

 

• NRW Joint Working Partnership Fund 

 

Approx £20,000 to support outputs from the Biodiversity Officer and to support internal 

and partner biodiversity projects. Projects included: 

Tudalen 17



- Habitat management at CCC site at Morfa Berwig, Bynea. Management is underway on 

this wildlife-rich council-owned site on to improve some of the brownfield  habitats for 

invertebrates , reptiles  and amphibians, manage ditches for water voles and scrub 

management and fencing to maintain open grassland. This land has been moved from 

Corporate Property to the Leisure portfolio, and we hope to make this site a Local Nature 

Reserve and increase community use of this site. 

 

- Dafen pond nature trail: A small nature trail will be installed with QR codes linked to more 

information on the CCC website that looks at less obvious features – bark, lichen, fungi, 

mosses, soil, etc. This is tied into a wider community project looking at the development of 

local natural resource management plans. 

 

- The Council, working with local ecologists, has run or contributed to a series of training 

sessions on protected species. Officers and contractors had a session on the value of 

roadside verges habitats. Officers working on housing projects learnt about bats and bridge 

engineers learnt about otters and bats in  sessions that discussed developing new protocols 

for working. In 2016 the council and NRW will arrange a session on water voles for council 

officers.  

 

• Heritage Lottery Funding 

A partnership led by Carmarthenshire County Council has been successful in receiving a 

grant of £43,000 HLF for an exciting project – Carmarthenshire Bogs – exploring their past, 

celebrating the present and conserving their future. The project continues work on five 

commons near Brechfa and Llanfynydd and is also supported with funding from Natural 

Resources Wales and the Council. It will seek to explore the botanical history of the peat 

bogs, raise awareness of the important bog habitats and species, and take action to 

conserve these important habitats for the future. Partners in the project are NBGW, 

Swansea University and Dyfed Archaeological Trust. 

 

Other 

The biodiversity officer facilitated the formation of the Carmarthenshire Meadows Group 

in 2015. Its aim is to inspire the establishment of a county-wide community that supports 

each other to conserve and enhance our wildlife-rich meadows, large or small, across 

Carmarthenshire. Walks, talks, site visits and a group website were established this year.  
 

 

9. Project support  

 

The Business Unit is supported by a project support officer who oversees the financial 

arrangements for the various grants and income the Unit receives, and the expenditure 

that the various projects incur (e.g. LBAP projects, Carmarthenshire Bogs HLF project and 

Caeau Mynydd Mawr SAC project).  She is also able to provide financial support to other 

units within planning services.  

 

 

10. Rural Conservation Business Unit and CCC policies and core values 

 

The work of the Unit is consistent with Carmarthenshire’s Integrated Community Strategy 

as it delivers one of its five key outcomes. Its work also reflects one of CCC’s core values 

Tudalen 18



(see table on page 9 onwards) and directly contributes to the delivery of Outcomes F1, F3 

and F4 within the Council’s Improvement Plan 2014/15. The Unit is also instrumental in 

ensuring that approved development meets the various policies that relate to the natural 

environment, through the provision of advice to development management, other CCC 

departments and the general public on landscape, trees, woodlands, hedgerows, 

biodiversity, Common Land and on development within the Caeau Mynydd Mawr SPG 

area.  

Tudalen 19



The CCC policies that the work of the Unit supports are listed below:    

 

Relevant policy or 

strategy 

Content Delivered through 

CCC’s Core values Treating people and the 

environment with respect. We 

aim to be a leader in the field 

of sustainability -

 improving the quality of life 

for local people while 

conserving the earth’s 

resources and protecting the 

environment 

 

• Coed Cymru project bringing 

woodlands into management 

• Tree Preservation Orders conserving 

trees, and advising on tree 

management 

• Ensuring Common Land is 

safeguarded 

• Conserving and enhancing the 

habitat required by the Marsh 

Fritillary butterfly 

• Carmarthenshire Local Biodiversity 

Action Plan partnership and running 

grant aided biodiversity projects 

• Commenting on planning 

applications with respect to 

landscape, common land and trees 

• Implementation of the Hedgerow 

regulations 1997 

 

Carmarthenshire’s 

Integrated Community 

Strategy 

 

Carmarthenshire’s 

communities and environment 

are sustainable 

See below F1, F3 and F4 

 CCC’s Improvement 

Plan 2014/15 

KIOP5 – Protect and enhance 

the environment and make a 

major contribution to 

sustainable energy and climate 

change policies 

Outcome F: Carmarthenshire’s 

communities and environment 

are sustainable 

 

• F1: Living within our 

environmental limits using 

only our fair-share of 

earth's resources and 

minimising our carbon 

emissions 

• F2: Reducing waste and 

moving towards becoming 

a zero-waste county 

• F3: Supporting 

opportunities for the 

building of economically 

viable and sustainable 

The focus of the Unit is on the 

conservation and enhancement of 

Carmarthenshire’s natural environment 

– common land, trees, woodlands, 

hedgerows, landscapes, biodiversity 

and EU protected Species (Caeau 

Mynydd Mawr SAC project). Protection 

of peat based habitats. 

 

• F1: Carmarthenshire Bogs Project  - 

conserving peat habitats that act as 

carbon stores 

• F3: Commenting on planning 

applications with respect to 

landscape, common land and trees 

• Implementing the Hedgerow 

Regulations 1997 

• F4: Coed Cymru project bringing 

woodlands into management. 

• Tree Preservation Orders conserving 

trees, and advising on tree 

management. 

Tudalen 20



Relevant policy or 

strategy 

Content Delivered through 

communities 

• F4: Protect, enhance and 

conserve our natural and 

built environment and 

champion biodiversity in 

the County 

• F5: Developing resilient 

and sustainable 

communities 

• F6: Developing sustainable 

transport options 

• F7: Ensuring the promotion 

of the Welsh language and 

Welsh culture 

 

• Ensuring Common Land is 

safeguarded. 

• Conserving and enhancing the 

habitat required by the marsh 

fritillary butterfly through S106 

agreements. 

• Carmarthenshire Local Biodiversity 

Action Plan (LBAP) partnership and 

running grant aided biodiversity 

projects. 

 

Planning Division 

Business Plan 2014/15 

Rural Conservation 

Business Unit 

The  Rural Conservation 

Business Unit actively works in 

partnership with local and 

national organisations, as well 

as the community, to assist in 

safeguarding a high-quality 

environment which retains its 

biodiversity, landscapes and 

historical and cultural heritage 

• Carmarthenshire Bogs project 

funded by HLF working in 

partnership with others 

• Caeau Mynydd Mawr SAC project 

steering group includes NRW, 

Butterfly Conservation Menter Cwm 

Gwendraeth, Wildlife Trust and 

RSPB 

• Carmarthenshire LBAP partnership 

includes 13 partner organisations 

and individuals 

• Commenting on planning 

applications with respect to 

landscape, common land and trees 

• Implementing the Hedgerow 

Regulations 1997 

 

Local Development 

Plan (LDP) 

Strategic Objective 4 

To ensure that the natural, 

built and historic environment 

is safeguarded and enhanced 

and that habitats and species 

are protected.  

 

• Coed Cymru project bringing 

woodlands into management 

• Tree Preservation Orders conserving 

trees, and advising on tree 

management 

• Ensuring Common Land is 

safeguarded 

• Conserving and enhancing the 

habitat required by the marsh 

fritillary butterfly 

• Carmarthenshire Local Biodiversity 

Action Plan partnership administers 

grant aided biodiversity projects 

• Commenting on planning 

Tudalen 21



Relevant policy or 

strategy 

Content Delivered through 

applications with respect to 

landscape, common land and trees 

• Implementation of the Hedgerow 

Regulations 1997 

 

LDP Strategy and 

Strategic objectives  

5.6.2 – The Plan seeks to 

protect and enhance the 

nature conservation and 

biodiversity value of 

Carmarthenshire, including its 

rich tapestry of habitats and 

species.  

 

As above 

LDP Strategic Policy 1 

Sustainable places and 

spaces: 

 

 

Proposals for development will 

be supported where they 

reflect sustainable 

development and design 

principles by: 

 

• Protect and enhance the 

area’s biodiversity value 

and where appropriate, 

seek to integrate nature 

conservation into new 

development 

• Commenting on planning 

applications with respect to 

landscape, common land and trees. 

Ensuring mitigation and/or 

compensation is provided as 

appropriate by means of habitat 

management and landscape design 

(Ecology matters are covered by the 

Planning Ecologist) 

• Providing pre application advice to 

other departments and the general 

public 

• Implementation of the Hedgerow 

Regulations 1997 

 

LDP  Strategic Policy 

14 Protection and 

Enhancement of the 

Natural Environment 

Development should reflect 

the need to protect, and 

wherever possible enhance the 

County’s natural environment. 

All development proposals 

should be considered in 

accordance with national 

guidance/legislation and the 

policies and proposals of this 

Plan, with due consideration 

given to areas of nature 

conservation value, the 

countryside, landscapes and 

coastal areas, including those 

outlined below.  

 

As  above 

LDP also contains the 

following 

Environmental Policies 

• EQ3 – Regional and Local 

Designations 

• EQ4 – Biodiversity 

• EQ3 – Provide advice on planning 

matters re designated sites, inc 

commenting on planning 

Tudalen 22



Relevant policy or 

strategy 

Content Delivered through 

that reflect the work 

of the Conservation 

Section 

• EQ5 – Corridors, Networks 

and features of 

distinctiveness (including 

trees, woodlands and 

hedgerows)  

• EQ6 – Special Landscape 

Areas  

• EQ7 – Development within 

the Caeau Mynydd Mawr 

SPG area 

 

 

applications 

• EQ4 – Delivery of Carmarthenshire 

LBAP and ensuring biodiversity 

advice is available pre application, 

and ensuring biodiversity is taken 

into account when determining 

planning application 

• EQ5 – Commenting on planning 

applications with regard to 

hedgerows, trees, woodlands and 

other landscape features 

• EQ6 – Review of SLAs and revision 

of these designated areas for the 

LDP.  Ensuring that development 

does not adversely affect SLAs 

• EQ7 – Managing and delivering the 

Caeau Mynydd Mawr SAC project in 

the SPG area 

 

Tudalen 23



Glossary of Terms  

 

ACRA  

 

CCC 

 

CROW 

 

EU  

 

HLF  

 

KIOP  

 

LBAP 

 

LDP  

 

NBGW  

 

NERC 

 

NRW 

 

PIMS  

 

 

QR Codes 

 

 

RSPB  

 

SAC 

 

S106 

 

SLA 

 

SPG 

 

SSSI  

 

TPO  

 

UK 

 

WG 

Association for Commons Registration Authorities 

 

Carmarthenshire County Council  

 

The Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000   

 

European Union  

 

Heritage Lottery Fund  

 

Key Improvement Objective Priority  

 

Local Biodiversity Action Plan  

 

Local Development Plan  

 

National Botanic Garden of Wales  

 

Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 

 

Natural Resources Wales  

 

Carmarthenshire County Council’s Performance Information 

Management System 

 

A Quick Response Code is a two-dimensional barcode that can be read 

using a smart-phone or another QR reading device 

 

Royal Society for the Protection of Birds 

 

Special Area of Conversation  

 

Section 106 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990  

 

Service Level Agreement  

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance  

 

Site of Special Scientific Importance  

 

Tree Preservation Order 

 

United Kingdom  

 

Welsh Government  

 

 

Tudalen 24



 

 
 
 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU DIOGELU’R CYHOEDD 

A’R AMGYLCHEDD 

11
eg

 O IONAWR 2016 
 
 

Priffyrdd – Y Newyddion Diweddaraf 
 

 

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt: 
 

• Bod y Pwyllgor yn ystyried yr adroddiad ac yn cyflwyno sylwadau arno. 
  

Rhesymau:  
 

• Rhoi’r newyddion diweddaraf am yr adolygiadau gwasanaeth priffyrdd sydd wedi’u 
cynnal hyd yn hyn, gan amlinellu cynigion rhagarweiniol i newid lefelau gwasanaeth er 
mwyn ymdrin â’r gyllideb lai fydd ar gael i’r gwasanaeth am y tair blynedd nesaf.  
 

• Mae’n angenrheidiol cynnal adolygiad o’r lefelau gwasanaeth sy’n gysylltiedig â’r 
swyddogaeth cynnal a chadw priffyrdd oherwydd y gostyngiad arfaethedig o ran y 
gyllideb fydd ar gael.  
 

• Er mwyn cyflwyno’r newyddion diweddaraf ar waith y gwasanaeth i’r Pwyllgor a 
galluogi aelodau i gyflawni eu dyletswyddau craffu ynghylch monitro perfformiad.  

 

 
Angen cyfeirio’r mater at y Bwrdd Gweithredol er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad:  
NAC OES 
 

 

 
Aelod y Bwrdd Gweithredol sy’n gyfrifol am y Portffolio:  
Cyng. Hazel Evans (Gwasanaethau Technegol)  
 

 
 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Amgylchedd  
 
Enw’r Cyfarwyddwr:  
Ruth Mullen   
 
 
Awdur yr adroddiad: 
Darren King 
 

 
Swyddi: 
 
 
 
Cyfarwyddwr yr Amgylchedd   
 
 
 
Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd 

 
Rhifau Ffôn / Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 
 
 
 
01267 224648 
rmullen@sirgar.gov.uk  
 
 
01267 224544 
dking@sirgar.gov.uk  
 

 

Eitem Rhif  7

Tudalen 25



 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL & PUBLIC PROTECTION 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

11
th

 JANUARY 2016 
 
 

Highways Update 
  

 

 
This report provides the Committee with an update on the highway service reviews 
undertaken to date, outlining preliminary proposals to amend levels of service so as to 
address the reduced budget available to the service for the next three years. 
 
The length of highway network maintained in Carmarthenshire at 3343km or 2085 miles, is 
the second largest in Wales, and is more than double the Welsh average of 1566km. It 
also has the second largest length of Class 1 roads in Wales second only to Gwynedd. 
The highway asset consists of some 16 million square metres of carriageway. 
 
This report includes the following:  
 
1. Introduction to the service  

 
2. Details of the service review to date 

 
3. Future service proposals  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? 

 
YES  
 

 
  

Tudalen 26



 

 
 
 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report.  
  
Signed:    Ruth Mullen 

 
Director of Environment    

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets  

 
NONE  
 

 
NONE  
 

 
NONE  
 

 
NONE  
 

 
NONE  
 

 
NONE  
 

 
NONE  
 

 
 
 
 
 

CONSULTATIONS 

 
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below: 
  
Signed:    Ruth Mullen 

 
Director of Environment    

 
1. Local Member(s) – N/A 
 
2. Community / Town Council – N/A 
 
3. Relevant Partners – N/A 
 
4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – N/A  
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THERE ARE NONE   
 

Title of 
Document 
 

File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public 
inspection 

  

 

Tudalen 27



Tudalen 28

Mae’r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



HIGHWAYS SERVICE REVIEW ~ UPDATE 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

Network Details 
 

The length of highway network maintained in Carmarthenshire at 3343km or 2085 miles 
(Lands End to John O Groats ~ 2 and a half times !) is the second largest in Wales, and is 
more than double the Welsh average of 1566km. It also has the second largest length of 
Class 1 roads in Wales second only to Gwynedd. The highway asset consists of some 16 
million square metres of carriageway. 

 

Current Budget Allocation 
 

The Highway Services revenue budget for 2015-16 is circa £8.1million. Capital funding of 
£250k has been agreed for the current year for highway resurfacing schemes in 
accordance with the 5 year capital budget plan. 

 
Asset Value 

 
The highway asset is currently valued at £2.68 billion based on the 2014/15 WGA asset 
valuation return with annual depreciation assessed at £26.6 million. This figure relates to 
the carriageway only and is calculated from annual asset valuation based on CIPFA 
(Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy) code of practice for Whole of 
Government Accounts (WGA). 

 
Cost / Km 

The overall level of expenditure on carriageway maintenance in Carmarthenshire (£/km) is 
generally lower than the Welsh and UK averages and also that of our neighbouring 
authorities. This lower level of investment can be directly linked to the overall condition of 
the highway network, with insufficient corrective or preventative maintenance funding in 
place. 

Continued levels of deterioration are anticipated with the end of Local Government 
Borrowing Initiative (LGBI) from 2015/16 and further reductions in revenue and capital 
maintenance funding.  

The average investment in £/km for road maintenance across a group of similar authorities 
in England, Scotland & Wales (as collated by APSE for the period 12/13) was £7,149/km. 
The Welsh average that year was much lower at £4,124 with Carmarthenshire lower than 
average at £4,007/km. This figure has reduced year on year to an estimated investment of 
£2,826/km in 14/15 including Grant funds (LGBI) of £1.45m. 

In 2015/16 the investment in Carmarthenshire will reduce to an estimated figure of 
£2424/km which takes into account the reduced budget provision. 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 29



Condition of the highway asset & investment to date. 
 

As a result of the recent LGBI funding we have seen a further improvement in the 
condition of our Class A, B & C roads during 2014/15 with 11.9% of our roads in a poor 
condition, compared to 15.7% in 2013/14. With Class A roads improving from 4.7% to 
4.3%, Class B from 5.5% to 3.6% and Class C from 20.4% to 15.6%, despite this 
improvement our combined result remains in the bottom quartile. The combined PI for the 
A,B and C class roads in terms of the national performance indicator has reduced from 
15.4% in 12/13 to 11.9% in 14/15.  The higher the percentage correlates with a greater 
extent of deterioration.  
 
In Carmarthenshire, the LGBI investment on carriageways has been: 12/13 ~ £3.59M; 
13/14 ~ £1.3M; 14/15 ~ £1.45M. The additional funding from LGBI can be seen to make a 
direct impact on the overall condition of the network. However with the cessation of this 
external funding it is inevitable that we will see continued levels of deterioration in the 
highway asset. 

 
The LGBI investment in Carmarthenshire was primarily targeted at A&B roads as outlined 
above. Investment in Class 3 roads in the final year would appear to have assisted with a 
recovery from 21.8% in 2012 to 15.6% in 2014 however this figure is significantly higher 
than target level of around 8%.  Timely investments need to continue on all classes of 
road to prevent a reversal in these trends, with some increased focus on Class 3 roads. 
Investing in programmes of planned cost-effective long-term preventative maintenance will 
help avoid widespread failure of the road construction that will ultimately be more costly to 
repair. We need to consider that recent Winters have been relatively mild and any short 
term recovery is still vulnerable to rapid deterioration should we experience any hard 
winters. 

 

 

Backlog of maintenance work  
 

The scale of backlog is such that there is a large (£18m) programme of capital 
maintenance work identified as part of a rolling programme of maintenance. This 
programme is increasing. The only capital investment or funding mechanism currently 
allocated for highway resurfacing is £250,000 per year for the next 4 years. This is a 
significant shortfall compared to previous levels of investment under the LGBI scheme. 
Clearly this level of funding will not address the long term aspirations of improving the 
serviceability, availability and safety of the network. 

 
Without sufficient capital investment, the level of backlog (valued at £54 million) will 
continue to grow and the network condition will deteriorate further. The backlog of highway 
maintenance repairs will become much more expensive to address and could lead to 
sections of the network being subject to restrictions or in the worst case scenario road 
closures which will affect economic development and tourism. This aspect of maintenance 
is identified as high risk to the Authority and has been included in the Streetscene 
Divisional Business Plan 2015-16.  

 
 
Future budget cuts 
 
Providing funding for planned maintenance will assist the authority in meeting its statutory 
requirements under the Highways Act 1980 and significantly supports the County 

Tudalen 30



Council’s corporate objectives of Integrated Community Strategy. There will also be a 
reduction in reactive maintenance and revenue costs to assist in meeting on-going PBB 
targets.  
 
The proposed PBBs for the next 2-3 years will see a further reduction of some £1million 
resulting in a revenue budget of circa £6 million. A cut of some £5 million compared to 4-5 
years ago. To date the service has met the challenge of delivering services in line with 
budget reductions without a noticeable decrease in standards. However with the further 
severe budget cuts facing the Highways Service it is widely acknowledged that the service 
standards will inevitably be affected. 
 
The highway network in Carmarthenshire is an asset to the county that promotes 
economic viability and social well being. Well maintained highways allow businesses to 
trade and people can live their lives. Maintenance is crucial to the safety of the road 
network and all those that use it.  
 

 
 

2. SERVICE REVIEW TO DATE 
 
 
Reduction in manning levels  
 
Over the past 4-5 years one of the most valuable assets in the Highways Service it’s 
labour force has reduced significantly from 160 in 2007 to 120 in 2015. The reduction in 
manning levels has been necessary to meet the imposed budgets efficiency savings and 
PBB cuts. This reduction has been met through age related retirement, ill-health 
retirement, other employment and voluntary severance. Whilst it can be considered that 
the service is operating more efficiently we are however at our minimum manning levels 
and any further decrease in the workforce will affect operational efficiencies and reduce 
the authority’s resilience in providing a winter maintenance and emergency service. 

 
 
Fleet reduction  
 
A review of the Highways Service fleet has recently been completed and a fleet 
replacement programme has been agreed with procurement of new vehicles currently 
underway. The programme will see the complete replacement of the winter service fleet of 
gritters and its construction fleet of 18 tne HGV tipper lorries. The combined fleet of 35 
vehicles are to be replaced with a new fleet of only 22 vehicles. A reduction of 13 vehicles 
should achieve annual savings of approx. £180k and will assist the service in delivering 
the required PBB targets over the next two years. The service will no longer have 
dedicated gritting vehicles which stand idle throughout the summer months but instead will 
have swap body type vehicles which can be used all year round thus increasing vehicle 
utilisation and efficiencies within the service. Swap body vehicles will be used for 
construction work during the day removing excavated materials from site / delivering 
tarmac and then swapping to a gritter body at the end of shift for gritting operations that 
evening. The operation associated with swapping bodies will not impact on service 
delivery. 

 
 

 

Tudalen 31



Winter Service ~ New Forecast Domains / Gritting Route Efficiencies 
 

To date Carmarthenshire’s winter maintenance forecasting arrangements have been 
based on two operational domains i.e. East / West. However it is apparent that these 
geographic regions do not lend themselves to climatic forecasting due to the varied 
topography across the County. The current East / West domains are both varied in 
topography with a mixture of coastal, inland, high and low ground.  In addition the forecast 
for the East domain, particularly when snow is featured, can be dominated by the weather 
station forecast from Storey Arms, Brecon Beacons which is necessary to account for the 
A4069 Black mountain road of a similar height and region. 
 
In order to improve service efficiency and target scarce resources effectively, the authority 
has reviewed the efficiency of it’s existing 14 gritting routes prior to the start of this winter 
season and developed new routes based on the revised forecasting domains. These new 
domains have been established with similar topographic and potentially climatic 
properties. They consist of North, South and High Ground domains which are now more 
representative of the county’s topographical and geographical areas.. 
 
It is anticipated that the revised domains will enable the weather forecaster to provide 
higher confidence forecasts for more distinct topographic regions. This will allow more 
selective regional treatments during winter conditions and reduce the number of blanket 
treatments across the County particularly in the South domain around the coastal fringes. 

 

Restructure ~ Operational Boundaries / Workforce / Area Staff 

 

A complete review of the Streetscene Division was undertaken in 2014 to identify 
efficiencies within the service to meet the PBB targets for individual service units. A 
complete divisional restructure was subsequently approved and we are currently in the 
process of delivering the new staffing structure which is only partially complete for 
Streetscene. Restructure of the Highways Service unit is however complete and the new 
arrangements became fully operational on 1st April 2015. 
 
Summary of the restructure undertaken to date:~ 
 

• Operational area boundaries of East/West removed.  

• County wide approach with creation of 5 No. sectors. 

• Highway resource / asset equalised between each Asst Area Manager  

• Existing boundaries and reporting lines rationalised as fully as possible to 

streamline  operations, equalise workloads and support service efficiency  

  

Tudalen 32



3. FUTURE SERVICE PROPOSALS 
 
 
Network Hierarchy  

 

The highway network in Carmarthenshire is currently managed based on roads 
classification A, B, C and Unclassified.  Whilst this is a reasonable approach it does not 
always fully take into account such factors as traffic flow, the location of primary centres, 
important facilities and key strategic routes within the County. 
 
The department intends to develop a network hierarchy in line with recommended 
guidance in the National Code of Practice for Highways. This hierarchy will form a sound 
basis for improved asset management and resource allocation based on a prioritised 
network according to use and strategic importance.  
 

The authority works closely with other Welsh authorities via County Surveyors Society 
(CSS) Wales and the Asset Management Project. The alignment of hierarchy and service 
standards is seen as crucial to allow better comparisons and performance measurement. 
Moving to a network hierarchy will also enable improved collaborative working with 
neighbouring authorities where possible, as hierarchies and standards will be aligned. 
 
 
 Service standards 

 

Introduction of a network hierarchy within Carmarthenshire will present an opportunity to 
define service levels and target limited resources in a structured manner, according to 
Council policy. Routine maintenance functions such as gully cleaning; sweeping; drainage 
maintenance; grass cutting; weed clearance; sign cleaning will be assigned a level of 
service based on the network hierarchy. 
 
 
Winter Service ~ Prioritised Gritting Routes  

 

The provision of a Highways Winter Service i.e. Gritting and Snow clearance, is a 
significant cost item for the Authority. As such the service is subject to continual review 
with the aim to identify efficiencies and ensure best use is made of resources. The service 
is one that receives numerous requests to increase coverage against a backdrop of 
reducing budgets. A partial review has already achieved a reduction from 14 to 13 routes 
however a further review is essential in order to realise savings in the winter service 
budget. The aim of this review is to re-prioritise the routes for winter service based on a 
risk based scoring matrix and taking into account the new weather forecasting domains to 
identify essential savings whilst making best use of current resources. 
 
 
PBBs / Budget Cuts ~ Service Proposals 
 
 

For the Highways Service to meet the challenges of the PPB savings over the next 3 
years it is critical that a Network Hierarchy is agreed for all sections of road within the 
authority. This will define the level of services across all types and classes of road 
primarily based on its level of usage and strategic importance and will form the basis of 
our highway maintenance regime in the county. This principle has been adopted by most 

Tudalen 33



of the highway authorities in England and Wales and is seen as the most effective and 
efficient way of managing services within reduced budgets and sets out the key functions 
of a Highways Service. 
 
Some initial proposals for year 1 are outlined below for information:~ 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Some initial proposals for year 2 & 3 are outlined below for information :~ 
 

 
  
 
 
 

Summary / Conclusion 
 
The proposals outlined in the tables above show that we can meet year 1 savings without 
greatly affecting the level of service however further work is required on the preliminary 
proposals for years 2 & 3 to adequately assess and prioritise service levels in accordance 
with a redefined network hierarchy. 
 
 
 

Highway Services  ~ ( PBB proposals 2016/17 )
Agreed Target ~ 

£512,000

PBB Options Saving

£

1 Reduce Surface Dressing budget by 10%  100,000

3 Reduction of Amenity Grass Cutting frequencies 20,000

4 Shrub Mtce to be undertaken in-house by Cyclic Gangs 15,000

5 Reduction in mtce of raised flower beds / Rdbts in Carmarthen & Llanelli 16,000

8 Reduction in Construction Gangs by 2 No. through voluntary scheme 280,000

9 Fleet Replacement ~ 3.5 tne pickup trucks ~ efficiency through new leasing contract 80,000

Total Saving 511,000

Highway Services  ~ (PBB potential proposals 17/18 & 18/19)

PBB Options Saving

£

1 Reduce Surface Dressing budget by 10%   100,000

2 Reduce Surface Dressing Patching budget by 10%   40,000

3 Reduction in Sweeping function  70,000

4 Reduction in Gully Emptying  frequency 70,000

6 Further Reductions in Amenity Grass Cutting frequency 20,000

7 Reduction in annual verge mowing ~ restricted to 30/40 mph zones ~ safety cuts only elswhere 30,000

8 Reduction in Jetting function 25,000

9 Cease Mechanical Ditching function  15,000

10 Reduction in number of gritting routes & network coverage 30,000

Total Saving 400,000

Tudalen 34



 

 
 
 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU DIOGELU’R CYHOEDD 

A’R AMGYLCHEDD 

11
eg

 O IONAWR 2016 
 
 

Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen Diogelu’r Cyhoedd a’r 
Amgylchedd 2015/16 –  

Dogfen Cynllunio a Chwmpasu 
 

 

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt: 
 

• Ystyried a nodi nodau a chwmpas gwaith y Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen.  
 

• Ystyried a nodi y camau allweddol ar gyfer cwblhau gwaith y Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen.  
 

Rhesymau:  
 

• Mae’n ofynnol bod y Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen yn rhoi gwybod i’r prif bwyllgor craffu am 
y cynnydd a wneir o ran y gwaith. 

 

 
Angen cyfeirio’r mater at y Bwrdd Gweithredol er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad:  
NAC OES 
 
 

 
Aelod y Bwrdd Gweithredol sy’n gyfrifol am y Portffolio:  
Cyng. Pam Palmer (Cymunedau a Rheolydd Busnes y Cyngor)   
 
 

 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Prif Weithredwr  
 
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 
Linda Rees-Jones  
 
 
Awdur yr adroddiad: 
Matthew Hughes  
 

 
Swyddi: 
 
 
 
Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a’r 
Gyfraith  
 
 
Ymgynghorydd Cynorthwyol  
 
  

 
Rhifau Ffôn / Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 
 
 
 
01267 224010 
lrjones@sirgar.gov.uk  
 
 
01267 224029  
mahughes@sirgar.gov.uk  
 

 
  

Eitem Rhif  8

Tudalen 35



 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL & PUBLIC PROTECTION 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

11
th

 JANUARY 2016 
 
 

Environmental & Public Protection Task & Finish 
Group 2015/16 –  

Planning and Scoping Document 
  

 

 
At its meeting on 15th May 2015, the Environmental & Public Protection Scrutiny 
Committee agreed to establish a task and finish group “to research different approaches to 
car parking charges that could be applied in the county”. 
 
The members of the Group are:  

 

• Cllr. Peter Cooper (Chair)  

• Cllr. Alun Davies 

• Cllr. Ivor Jackson   

• Cllr. John Jenkins 

• Cllr. Elwyn Williams  
 
The study main aims of the study will be to:   
  

• Research different approaches to car parking charges that could be applied in the 
county.  

• To formulate recommendations for consideration by the Executive Board. 
 
The Group held its first planning meeting on 24th September 2015 and nominated Cllr. 
Peter Cooper as chair. The Group discussed the scope of the review, key issues to be 
addressed, key stakeholders to be consulted and key milestones to be met. These details 
are outlined in the attached document.  
 

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? 
 

 
YES  
 

 
  

Tudalen 36



 

 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report.  
  
Signed:    Linda Rees-Jones 

 
Head of Administration & Law  

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets  

NONE NONE NONE  NONE NONE NONE NONE 

 
 
 

CONSULTATIONS 

 
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below: 
  
Signed:    Linda Rees-Jones 

 
Head of Administration & Law  

 
1. Local Member(s) – N/A  
 
2. Community / Town Council – N/A 
 
3. Relevant Partners – If required, representatives from partner organisations will be 
consulted as part of the Task & Finish Group’s review.  
 
4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – Officers from the Transport & 
Engineering Division (Environment Department) contributed to the development of the 
Planning and Scoping Document and will continue to support the work of the Task & Finish 
Group.   
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW:  
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

 
Executive Board (28th 
September 2015)  
 

 
Agenda & Minutes 
http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=131&MI
d=122&Ver=4  
 

 
E&PP Scrutiny 
Committee (15th May 
2015) 
 

 
Minutes  
http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/agendas/eng/ENMT20150515/MINUTES.HT
M   
 

 

Tudalen 37



Tudalen 38

Mae’r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu  
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

1

 

Environmental & Public Protection Scrutiny Committee 
Task & Finish Group 2015/16 

 
Car Parking Charges  

 
Planning & Scoping Document 

 

 

 
Context 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Environmental & Public Protection Scrutiny Committee has a key 
role to play in monitoring services, development of key policies and 
strategies, as well as identifying areas for improvement or 
development. 
 
At its meeting on 15th May 2015, the Environmental & Public 
Protection Scrutiny Committee agreed to establish a task and finish 
group to research different approaches to car parking charges that 
could be applied in the county. 
 
Following consideration of a report on Llanelli Car Parks at its meeting 
on the 28th September 2015, the Executive Board also requested that 
the Group explore the option of introducing a pay on exit system at the 
Llanelli multi-storey car park in lieu of the pay and display / pay on foot 
system.   
 

 
Membership 
 
 

 
Elected Members  
 

• Cllr. Peter Cooper (Chair)  

• Cllr. Alun Davies 

• Cllr. Ivor Jackson  

• Cllr. John Jenkins   

• Cllr. Elwyn Williams  
 

Advisors / Support Officers 
 

• Steve Pilliner (Head of Transport & Engineering, Environment 
Department)   

• John McEvoy (Road Safety & Traffic Manager, Environment 
Department)  

• Matthew Hughes (Assistant Consultant, Chief Executive’s 
Department) 

 

 
The main aims of 
the review  
 
 

 

• Research different approaches to car parking charges that could be 
applied in the county 
 

• To formulate recommendations for consideration by the Executive 

Tudalen 39



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu  
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

2

Board 
 

 
Scope of the study 
 

 
This review will focus on : 
 

• Charging Policy (to include Transport Strategy & Policy)  
 

• Legislation relating to Traffic Management and Parking 
 

• The purpose of parking charges 
 

• Car park demand / usage  
 

• Revenue distribution and impact of reducing charges  
 

• Research evidence on the impact of car park charging 
 

• Main town centre footfall 
 

• Car park charges and competiveness including socio-economic 
issues 

 

 
How it will 
contribute to 
achieving 
corporate / 
community 
objectives and 
priorities 
 

 
Contributes to the following outcomes from the County Council’s 
Corporate Strategy 2015-20 and Carmarthenshire’s Integrated 
Community Strategy 2011-16: 
 

• Making the best use of resources 

• People who live, work and visit Carmarthenshire are safe and feel 
safer  

• Carmarthenshire’s communities and environment are sustainable  

• Carmarthenshire has a stronger and more prosperous economy   
 

 
Initial list of key 
officers, 
stakeholders, 
partners or other 
agencies to 
involve 
 

 

• Steve Pilliner (Head of Transport & Engineering)   

• John McEvoy (Road Safety & Traffic Manager)  

• Representatives from Regeneration & Policy Division  

 
What information / 
documents are 
required to inform 
the work of the 
study? 
 

 

• Carmarthenshire parking data (e.g. charges and usage) 
 

• Parking data from other authorities for comparison purposes 
 

• Case studies from other local authorities (including initiatives)  
 

• Data and analysis from the Council’s recent initiative in Llanelli 
offering two hour period of free car parking between 3:00 and 
5:00pm during October 

 

Tudalen 40



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu  
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

3

• Any submissions from members of the public 
 

• Relevant traffic management and parking legislation  
 

• Car parking research reports (e.g. Welsh Government 
commissioned ‘Impact of Car Park Charges’ Research Report, 
Association of Town & City Management, British Parking 
Association, RAC Foundation reports)  

 

• Integrated Parking Strategy for Carmarthenshire (December 2005)  
 

• Regional Transport Plan / Local Transport Plan / Wales Transport 
Strategy  

 

• Llanelli Car Parks report (Executive Board, 28th September 2015) 
 

 
Timescale for 
completion of the 
review 

 
Thursday 24th September 2015 – Group Meeting 1 

• To agree aim and overall approach for the review 
 
Monday 9th November 2015 – Group Meeting 2 

• Charging Policy (to include Transport Strategy & Policy)  

• Legislation relating to Traffic Management and Parking  

• Car park charges and competiveness including socio-economic 
issues  

• Research evidence on the impact of car park charging 
 
Thursday 17th December 2015  

• Parking trends / Car park usage data 

• Summary of recent consultation relating to car parking charges  

• Pay on Exit Systems 
 
Friday 15th January 2016 – Group Meeting 3  

• Consideration of possible initiatives   

• Findings of Llanelli parking pilot 

• Town centre footfall data 
 
Tuesday 9th February 2016 – Group Meeting 4 

• Drawing Conclusions / Final Report (Summary of key findings / draft 
recommendations)  

 

 

Tudalen 41



Tudalen 42

Mae’r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 
 

 
 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU DIOGELU'R CYHOEDD A'R 

AMGYLCHEDD 
DYDD IAU 12FED O DACHWEDD 2015 

 
YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd A.P. Cooper (Cadeirydd) 
 
Y Cynghorwyr: A. Davies, J.A. Davies, D.C. Evans, I.J. Jackson, A. James, 
S.E. Thomas a D.E. Williams 
 
Cyng. D.J.R. Bartlett – Yn dirprwyo ar ran y Cyng. W.G. Thomas 
Cyng. C.A. Campbell – Yn dirprwyo ar ran y Cyng. W.J. Lemon  
Cyng. J.D. James – Yn dirprwyo ar ran y Cyng. K.P. Thomas 
Cyng. M.J.A Lewis – Yn dirprwyo ar ran y Cyng. A. Davies   
Cyng D.W.H. Richards – Yn dirprwyo ar ran y Cyng. D.B. Davies 
 
Yr oedd y swyddogion canlynol yn gwasanaethu yn y cyfarfod: 
 
Mrs. R. Mullen - Cyfarwyddwr yr Amgylchedd 
Mr. M. Cresci - Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Stryd 
Mr. M.V. Davies - Pennaeth Dros-Dro Cynnal Eiddo ac Adeiladwaith   
Mr. S. Pilliner - Pennaeth Trafnidiaeth a Pheirianneg 
Mr. R. Staines - Pennaeth Tai a Diogelu'r Cyhoedd 
Mr. R. Edmunds - Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Safonau Masnach   
Ms. J. Edwards - Prif Swyddog Busnes a Datblygu 
Ms. R. James - Cyfrifydd Grŵp  
Mr. J. McEvoy - Rheolwr Traffig a Diogelwch ar y Ffyrdd  
Ms. K. Thomas - Rheolwr Diogelwch Cymunedol  
Mrs. S.E. Watts - Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Iechyd y Cyhoedd 
Mr. A. Williams - Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Stryd  
 
Mrs. M. Kathrens – Cynorthwy-ydd Technegol (Gwasanaethau Stryd) 
 
Lleoliad: Siambr, 3 Heol Spilman, Caerfyrddin – 10:00 - 11:05yb 
 
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

 

Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorwyr A. Davies, D.B. 
Davies, W.J. Lemon, A.D.T. Speake, K.P. Thomas ac W.G. Thomas.  
 
Hefyd cafwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorydd H.A.L. Evans 
(Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros y Gwasanaethau Technegol) a'r Cynghorydd 
T.J Jones (Aelod o’r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Ddiogelu'r Cyhoedd a'r 
Amgylchedd).  
 
Estynnodd y Cadeirydd groeso i Mrs Ruth Mullen i'w chyfarfod cyntaf fel 
Cyfarwyddwr newydd Adran yr Amgylchedd. 
  

Eitem Rhif  9

Tudalen 43



 
 

 
 

2. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU PERSONOL 

 

Y Cynghorydd  Rhif y Cofnod(ion) Y Math o Fuddiant 

 
Y Cyng. D.W.H. 
Richards 
 

 
6. Adroddiad Monitro 
ynghylch Cyllideb 
Refeniw a Chyllideb 
Gyfalaf 2015/16 
 

 
Perchennog tir ger Cronfa 
Ddŵr Trebeddrod yn 
Llanelli  

 
 

3. DATGAN CHWIP WAHARDDEDIG 

 

Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau ynghylch chwip.  
 
 

4. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD 

 
Nid oedd cwestiynau gan y cyhoedd wedi dod i law.  
 
 

5. EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL 

 

Atgoffwyd y Pwyllgor gan y Cadeirydd fod Seminar Cyllideb Adran yr Amgylchedd 
ar gyfer aelodau yn cael ei gynnal ddydd Mawrth 8 Rhagfyr am 2:00pm yn Y 
Ffwrnes, Llanelli.    
 
PENDERFYNWYD nodi'r rhestr o eitemau ar gyfer y dyfodol a oedd i'w 
hystyried yn y cyfarfod nesaf ddydd Gwener, 11eg Rhagfyr 2015.  
 
 

6. ADRODDIAD MONITRO YNGHYLCH CYLLIDEB REFENIW A CHYLLIDEB 

GYFALAF 2015/16 

 
Roedd y Cynghorydd D.W.H. Richards wedi datgan buddiant sef ei fod yn 
berchennog tir ger Cronfa Ddŵr Trebeddrod yn Llanelli 
 
Bu'r Pwyllgor yn ystyried Adroddiad Monitro'r Gyllideb Refeniw a'r Gyllideb Gyfalaf 
ar gyfer Adran yr Amgylchedd, Gwasanaethau Diogelu'r Cyhoedd a'r Tîm 
Diogelwch Cymunedol, fel yr oedd ar 31ain Awst 2015, mewn perthynas â 
blwyddyn ariannol 2015/16. Codwyd y materion canlynol wrth ystyried yr 
adroddiad:  
 
Cyfeiriwyd at atal wyth aelod o staff o Adran yr Amgylchedd yn ddiweddar a 
gofynnwyd sut roedd y gwasanaethau'n ymdopi heb y nifer cyflawn o staff a pha 
effaith roedd hynny'n ei chael ar gyllideb yr Adran. Rhoddodd Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaethau Stryd wybod i'r Pwyllgor fod y gwasanaethau yn gweithredu 
cynlluniau eraill yn sgil yr absenoldebau staff, fel oedd yn digwydd wrth ymdrin ag 
absenoldeb salwch neu wyliau blynyddol. Mewn rhai sefyllfaoedd, roedd 
gweithwyr asiantaeth yn cael eu cyflogi i gyflenwi yn absenoldeb staff craidd ac 
roedd cyllideb yr adran yn talu costau hynny. Rhoddodd Cyfarwyddwr yr 
Amgylchedd wybod i'r Pwyllgor nad oedd dim effaith ar ddarparu'r gwasanaethau 
perthnasol ac er bod yr Adran yn dymuno dod â'r mater hwn i'w derfyn cyn gynted 

Tudalen 44



 
 

 
 

ag y bo modd, roedd dyletswydd ar yr Awdurdod i gydymffurfio â'r ddeddfwriaeth 
berthnasol a'r polisïau adnoddau dynol er mwyn sicrhau bod pob achos yn cael ei 
glywed ac yr ymdrinnir â phob achos yn deg.   
 
Yn ateb i gwestiwn ynghylch pryd y byddai trosglwyddo cyfleusterau cyhoeddus yn 
cael ei gwblhau, atgoffwyd y Pwyllgor gan Bennaeth y Gwasanaethau Stryd fod 
trosglwyddo cyfleusterau cyhoeddus i Gynghorau Tref a Chymuned yn ei ail 
flwyddyn o broses tair blynedd ond cytunodd i edrych ar y camau a gymerwyd a 
rhoi gwybod i'r Pwyllgor.   
 
Gofynnwyd am eglurhad ynghylch yr amrywiad yn ymwneud â'r Gwasanaeth 
Cynlluniau Argyfwng, gwaith Fforwm Lleol Cymru Gydnerth a pham roedd yr 
Awdurdod yn ariannu swydd yng Nghyngor Sir Penfro. Rhoddodd Cyfrifydd y 
Grŵp a Phennaeth y Gwasanaethau Stryd wybod i'r Pwyllgor fod Fforwm Lleol 
Cymru Gydnerth Dyfed-Powys yn bartneriaeth amlasiantaeth oedd yn cynnwys 
gwasanaethau brys a gwasanaethau cyhoeddus allweddol a fyddai'n cydlynu'r 
ymateb i ddigwyddiad mawr yn y rhanbarth (e.e. tywydd difrifol, damwain fawr yn 
ymwneud â thrafnidiaeth neu ddiwydiant). Y tu allan i oriau arferol y swyddfa, 
roedd swyddog a gyflogir gan Gyngor Sir Penfro, wrth law ar gyfer y rhanbarth 
cyfan a'r £3,000 y cyfeiriwyd ato yn yr adroddiad oedd cyfraniad Sir Gaerfyrddin 
tuag at y trefniant rhanbarthol hwn. 
 
Cyfeiriwyd at yr amrywiad o £394,000 yng nghyllideb y Gwasanaethau Eiddo 
oherwydd targed incwm na ellir ei gyflawni a gofynnwyd cwestiwn ynghylch yr hyn 
oedd yn cael ei wneud i leihau hyn. Roedd Pennaeth Dros Dro Cynnal a Chadw 
Eiddo ac Adeiladu yn cydnabod bod hwn yn fater hirdymor a bod yr Adran yn 
gweithio gyda'r Gwasanaethau Ariannol i'w reoli. Rhagwelwyd y byddai'r 
adroddiad nesaf ynghylch monitro'r gyllideb yn dangos gostyngiad yn y ffigur hwn 
wrth i'r Adran ymgymryd â rhaglen o ailstrwythuro a defnyddio gweithwyr mewn 
meysydd eraill.  
 
Holwyd ynghylch yr amrywiad o £25,000 yn ymwneud â pharcio ceir, yn ogystal â'r 
effaith y byddai gwaith Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen y Pwyllgor yn ei chael ar hyn ac 
ar gynigion yn y dyfodol ynghylch y gyllideb ar gyfer y gwasanaeth hwn.  Hefyd 
cyfeiriwyd at y cynllun peilot parcio am ddim yn Llanelli ac effaith bosibl hynny ar 
gyllideb y gwasanaeth. Atgoffodd Pennaeth Trafnidiaeth a Pheirianneg y Pwyllgor 
fod yr amrywiad oherwydd y cynnydd arfaethedig o 20c yn y taliadau a godir ac 
oherwydd na weithredwyd y taliadau am barcio gyda'r nos.  Roedd y data a 
gasglwyd yn ystod cynllun peilot Llanelli wrthi'n cael eu dadansoddi ar hyn o bryd. 
Hefyd hysbysodd y Pwyllgor fod y Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen wedi cwrdd 
ddwywaith hyd yma. Roedd y cyfarfod diweddaraf a gynhaliwyd wedi canolbwyntio 
ar y polisïau a'r ddeddfwriaeth oedd yn sail i'r taliadau am barcio a rhagwelwyd y 
byddai'r adolygiad wedi'i gwblhau erbyn Mawrth 2016 er mwyn cyfrannu 
gwybodaeth i'r cynigion cyllidebol ar gyfer 2016/17 ac ar ôl hynny.   
 
Yn ateb i gwestiwn am y gwaith yng Nghronfa Ddŵr Trebeddrod, dywedodd 
Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Stryd wrth y Pwyllgor fod y gwaith yn parhau a bod y 
cam terfynol i fod i gael ei gwblhau erbyn diwedd Chwefror 2016.   
 
Yn sgil y cynnydd yn y pwysau ariannol a wynebir gan yr Adran, gofynnwyd pa 
gamau oedd yn cael eu cymryd i reoli'r gweithlu a pharatoi staff ar gyfer 
newidiadau a gostyngiadau posibl yn y gwasanaethau. Roedd Pennaeth yr 
Amgylchedd yn cydnabod ei bod yn iawn a phriodol i baratoi am arbedion 

Tudalen 45



 
 

 
 

effeithlonrwydd yn y dyfodol a bod camau ar waith i reoli'r gweithlu drwy'r cyfnod 
anodd hwn.  Roedd y rhain yn cynnwys y cynllun terfynu cyflogaeth ac edrych ar 
gyfleoedd i adleoli staff i ddyletswyddau eraill yn yr Adran.  
 
Mynegwyd pryder ynghylch y tangyflawniad o ran incwm ffioedd o fewn y 
Gwasanaeth Safonau Masnach a gofynnwyd pam na chafodd ffioedd yr Awdurdod 
eu cynyddu'n raddol yn unol â ffioedd awdurdodau cyfagos. Dywedodd y 
Pennaeth Tai a Diogelu'r Cyhoedd eu bod yn ymdrin â hyn ond y gellid olrhain y 
tangyflawniad i'r ffaith y derbyniwyd symiau mawr o incwm am ddigwyddiadau 
unwaith yn unig. Ers hynny roedd y symiau hyn wedi'u dilysu'n rhan o gyllidebau'r 
blynyddoedd i ddod er na fyddai'r gwasanaeth byth wedi gallu cyflawni'r un lefel o 
incwm mewn unrhyw flwyddyn 'arferol'. Roedd hon yn broblem a wynebai sawl 
gwasanaeth arall ar draws yr Awdurdod ac roedd angen datrys hyn ar y cyd â'r 
Gwasanaethau Ariannol.  
 
Gofynnwyd am eglurhad ynghylch colli'r Gronfa Diogelwch Cymunedol a lle y 
dyrannwyd y cyllid hwn. Dywedodd y Rheolwr Diogelwch Cymunedol wrth y 
Pwyllgor nad gorwariant oedd hwn ond cronfa grant a gafwyd o'r blaen gan y 
Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu fel cyfraniad tuag at weithredu'r gwasanaeth 
Teledu Cylch Cyfyng. Fodd bynnag, roedd y Comisiynydd wedi atal y cyllid hwn ar 
ddechrau'r flwyddyn ariannol ac yng ngoleuni hynny roedd y Bwrdd Gweithredol 
hefyd wedi atal cyfraniad yr Awdurdod i'r gwasanaeth. Fodd bynnag, hyd nes i'r 
gwasanaeth roi'r gorau i'r gweithrediadau ym mis Gorffennaf, roedd yr Awdurdod 
yn parhau i orfod talu'r costau fel yr amlinellwyd yn yr adroddiad. Roedd y 
ffigyrau'n parhau i gael eu dangos yn yr adroddiad gan fod y costau wedi digwydd 
yn ystod y flwyddyn ariannol gyfredol. 
 
Trafodwyd y rhaglen i gael fflyd gerbydau arall i'r Cyngor yn lle'r un bresennol a 
chyfeiriwyd at gyflwr y fflyd bresennol a'r gostyngiad yn nifer y cerbydau arbenigol 
oedd ar gael i wasanaethu ardaloedd penodol o'r sir. Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth 
Trafnidiaeth a Pheirianneg fod archeb gwerth £6 miliwn wedi'i chyflwyno i'r 
cyflenwyr a rhagwelwyd y byddai'n cael ei chyflawni yn 2016. Roedd yr archeb hon 
wedi blaenoriaethu cerbydau newydd ar gyfer casglu gwastraff a cherbydau ar 
gyfer gwasanaethau gofal cymdeithasol. Byddai'r Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd yn rhan 
o'r cylch nesaf o archebion a'r flaenoriaeth oedd dynodi'r strategaeth ar gyfer cael 
cerbydau newydd a gweithio gyda defnyddwyr y gwasanaethau. Roedd yn 
cydnabod bod cerbydau hŷn yn anweithredol am gyfnod hwy a bod hyn yn cael ei 
fonitro'n ddyddiol ond nid oedd yn bosibl cael y ffigyrau terfynol ar gyfer nifer y 
cerbydau newydd oherwydd byddai adolygiadau oedd ar waith o'r gwasanaethau 
yn effeithio ar hyn. Atgoffodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Stryd y Pwyllgor y byddai 
angen i'r Adran, yng ngoleuni'r pwysau ariannol parhaus, ailddiffinio safonau'r 
gwasanaethau a byddai nifer y cerbydau sydd ar gael yn effeithio ar y rhain. 
 
Mynegwyd pryderon ynghylch cyflwr rhwydwaith priffyrdd y Sir ac yn enwedig y 
rhwydwaith ffyrdd gwledig. Gofynnwyd a oedd yr Adran wedi archwilio dewisiadau 
eraill yn lle Menter Benthyca Llywodraeth Leol a oedd wedi dod i ben yn Ebrill 
2015 er mwyn gwella'r ffyrdd ac atal yr Awdurdod rhag cael ei ddal yn atebol am 
unrhyw ddamweiniau a achosir gan wynebau ffyrdd gwael. Roedd Cyfarwyddwr yr 
Amgylchedd yn cydnabod y sylwadau ond pwysleisiodd bod y swyddogion yn 
bwriadu cynhyrchu a thynnu i lawr gyllid ychwanegol yn ogystal â blaenoriaethu'r 
adnoddau yr oedd gan yr Adran yn barod i ymdrin â'r broblem. Gan fod hwn yn 
fater oedd yn wynebu holl awdurdodau Cymru, roedd cyfleoedd i weithio ar y cyd 
ag awdurdodau lleol eraill i dynnu i lawr gyllid ychwanegol a chanfod atebion 

Tudalen 46



 
 

 
 

blaengar i gynnal a chadw'r rhwydwaith priffyrdd. Nododd Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaethau Stryd fod swyddogion llywodraeth leol â chyfrifoldeb dros briffyrdd, 
wedi bod yn lobïo Llywodraeth Cymru drwy Gymdeithas y Syrfewyr Sir am 
estyniad i'r cynllun Menter Benthyca Llywodraeth Leol ond roedd hyn wedi'i wrthod 
gan weinidogion.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD derbyn yr adroddiad.  
  
 

7. ADRODDIAD HANNER BLWYDDYN YNGHYLCH RHEOLI PERFFORMIAD - 

1AF EBRILL TAN 30AIN MEDI 2015 

 
Rhoddodd y Pwyllgor ystyriaeth i'r Adroddiad Hanner Blwyddyn ynghylch Rheoli 
Perfformiad ar gyfer y gwasanaethau o fewn ei faes gorchwyl, am y cyfnod o'r 1af 
Ebrill tan 30ain Medi 2015. Roedd yr adroddiad  yn cynnwys:  
 
· Golwg Gyffredinol ar y Perfformiad gan Benaethiaid y Gwasanaethau  
· Monitro’r Cynllun Gwella – Camau Gweithredu a Mesurau Perfformiad  
· Monitro Cwynion a Chanmoliaeth  
· Ystadegau Troseddau yn Sir Gaerfyrddin  
 
Trafodwyd y materion canlynol wrth ystyried yr adroddiad: 
 
Cyfeiriwyd at gynlluniau'r Bartneriaeth Diogelwch Cymunedol a gofynnwyd a oedd 
cyfle i'r Awdurdod Lleol wneud defnydd o dŷ'r Heddlu yn Felin-foel oedd yn wag, 
yn enwedig yng ngoleuni'r galw am dai cymdeithasol. Nododd y Pennaeth Tai a 
Diogelu'r Cyhoedd fod gan yr Awdurdod gyllid i sicrhau bod eiddo gwag yn cael ei 
ddefnyddio eto fel tai cymdeithasol a chytunodd y Rheolwr Diogelwch Cymunedol i 
egluro'r mater gyda Heddlu Dyfed-Powys.   
 
Yn ateb i gwestiwn ynghylch statws y cynllun uwchraddio goleuadau cyhoeddus, 
dywedodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Stryd wrth y Pwyllgor bod cais Buddsoddi i 
Arbed a gyflwynwyd i Lywodraeth Cymru wedi bod yn llwyddiannus yn ôl 
datganiad i'r wasg er nad oedd y swyddogion wedi cael eu hysbysu'n swyddogol o 
hyn eto. Byddai'r cyllid o £1.4 miliwn yn helpu i ariannu newid tua 12,500 o 
oleuadau stryd yn unedau LED ac y disgwylir arbedion o £600,000 y flwyddyn ar 
ynni a llafur.   
 
Awgrymwyd er bod yr adroddiad yn nodi gostyngiadau hyd at ddiwedd 2014/15, 
byddai'r ffigyrau ar gyfer marwolaethau ar y ffyrdd yn uwch yn dilyn nifer y rhai a 
gafodd eu lladd yn ystod haf 2015. Roedd y Pennaeth Trafnidiaeth a Pheirianneg 
yn cydnabod bod y ffigyrau ar gyfer damweiniau wedi cynyddu yn ystod y flwyddyn 
ac roedd yr ymchwil a wnaed gyda Heddlu Dyfed-Powys yn dangos mai 
ymddygiad gyrwyr oedd yn bennaf gyfrifol am achosi hyn. Roedd y cynnydd yn 
nifer y beicwyr modur a gafodd eu lladd yn destun pryder mawr ac roedd yr 
Awdurdod yn parhau i weithio'n galed i leihau nifer y digwyddiadau hynny, yn 
enwedig drwy ymgyrchoedd ar y cyd â Heddlu Dyfed-Powys (e.e. ‘Ymgyrch 
Darwen’) a chynlluniau addysgol. 
 
Yn ateb i ymholiadau ynghylch Ffordd Osgoi Llandeilo, atgoffodd y Pennaeth 
Trafnidiaeth a Pheirianneg y Pwyllgor fod ymrwymiad i'r ffordd osgoi yn y Cynllun 
Cyllid Trafnidiaeth Cenedlaethol ac y byddai amrywiol astudiaethau yn ymwneud 
â'r llwybr arfaethedig yn dechrau erbyn diwedd y flwyddyn. Fodd bynnag, roedd 

Tudalen 47



 
 

 
 

angen goresgyn nifer o rwystrau cyn y gellid cychwyn ar unrhyw waith adeiladu. 
Ychwanegodd fod y llwybr a ffafrir wedi cael ei nodi a'i warchod rhag unrhyw 
ddatblygiadau tai ond y byddai unrhyw newidiadau i'r llwybr hwn yn cael ei ystyried 
gan y gweinidog fel rhan o'r broses statudol.   
 
Mewn perthynas â chwestiwn am y cydweithio rhwng Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru a'r 
Awdurdod Lleol yn ymwneud â herwhela pysgod cregyn, cadarnhaodd Rheolwr y 
Gwasanaethau Iechyd Cyhoeddus fod swyddogion yn wir yn gweithio gyda 
Chyfoeth Naturiol Cymru a Llywodraeth Cymru a bod gan y ddau gyfrifoldeb 
penodol dros wahanol ardaloedd ar hyd morlin Sir Gaerfyrddin. Fodd bynnag, 
oherwydd maint yr ardal dan sylw, roedd yn anodd monitro a phlismona'r morlin 
oherwydd diffyg adnoddau gan yr asiantaethau perthnasol.  
 
Awgrymwyd gofyn i'r Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol lobïo Llywodraeth Cymru i 
gynyddu'r gwaith o fonitro'r gwelyau pysgod cregyn ym Mae Caerfyrddin er mwyn 
atal a rhwystro herwhela. Hefyd awgrymwyd oherwydd ymddygiad ymosodol yr 
herwhelwyr, y dylid anfon copïau at Gyllid a Thollau Ei Mawrhydi ac Asiantaeth 
Ffiniau'r DU o unrhyw ohebiaeth a anfonir at Lywodraeth Cymru.  Cytunodd y 
Pwyllgor â'r cynnig hwn.  
 
Gofynnwyd am eglurhad ynghylch statws Asesiad TEEP (ymarferol yn dechnegol, 
yn economaidd ac yn amgylcheddol) o drefniadau casglu deunyddiau gwastraff ac 
ailgylchu Sir Gaerfyrddin, mewn ymateb i ddymuniad Llywodraeth Cymru i safoni'r 
prosesau ar draws Cymru ar gyfer systemau didoli ymyl y ffordd.  Cadarnhaodd 
Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Stryd fod ymgynghorydd allanol a gyflogir gan yr 
Awdurdod yn cynnal asesiad trosolwg lefel uchel cychwynnol o fethodoleg casglu 
Sir Gaerfyrddin, ac y byddai'n adrodd nôl maes o law. Roedd yr Awdurdod wedi 
egluro'n llawn ei syniadau ynghylch methodolegau casglu i swyddogion 
Llywodraeth Cymru yn y gorffennol. Dywedodd Cyfarwyddwr yr Amgylchedd wrth 
y Pwyllgor fod y Prif Weithredwr ac Arweinydd y Cyngor hefyd wedi cwrdd â 
Llywodraeth Cymru ac wedi cyflwyno sylwadau cryf i'r gweinidogion ynghylch 
safbwynt Sir Gaerfyrddin sef y dylai awdurdodau lleol fod yn rhydd i ddefnyddio pa 
broses bynnag oedd yn diwallu eu hanghenion nhw orau.  
 
Mynegwyd siom fod adran Canmoliaeth a Chwynion yr adroddiad yn dal i adael 
allan ymholiadau gan Gynghorwyr oedd yn aml yn gwynion ond a gyflwynwyd 
drwy broses wahanol. Y farn oedd nad oedd yr adroddiad felly'n wir adlewyrchiad 
o'r cwynion a'r ganmoliaeth a gafodd yr Awdurdod.  Cytunodd y Cadeirydd a'r 
Ymgynghorydd Cynorthwyol i anfon y sylwadau ymlaen at y swyddog perthnasol 
oedd â chyfrifoldeb dros yr adroddiadau hyn.      
 
 PENDERFYNWYD: 
 
7.1       Bod yr adroddiad yn cael ei dderbyn.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL: 
 
7.2 Bod yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol (Diogelu'r Cyhoedd a'r 

Amgylchedd) yn cael ei ofyn i lobïo Llywodraeth Cymru i ddyrannu (ar 
y cyd â'r asiantaethau perthnasol), adnoddau ychwanegol er mwyn 
gallu cynyddu'r gwaith monitro yn ardal Bae Caerfyrddin er mwyn atal 
herwhela pysgod cregyn.  

 

Tudalen 48



 
 

 
 

8. MATER A GYFEIRIWYD AT Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU - DIOGELU'R CYHOEDD 

A'R AMGYLCHEDD 

 
Bu'r Pwyllgor yn ystyried mater a gyfeiriwyd gan y Pwyllgor Craffu - Polisi ac 
Adnoddau. Eglurodd yr Ymgynghorydd Cynorthwyol gefndir y mater a gyfeiriwyd a 
rhoddodd ddiweddariad i'r Pwyllgor ynghylch y cynigion am fformat newydd i'r 
adroddiadau monitro perfformiad a ddeuai gerbron y pwyllgorau craffu ac a 
fyddai'n cael ei rannu â'r aelodau etholedig mewn sesiwn briffio ar 14 Ionawr 2016 
(2:00pm).  
 
Awgrymodd y Pennaeth Tai a Diogelu'r Cyhoedd fod y sesiwn hon yn rhoi cyfle 
delfrydol i aelodau fynegi eu barn ynghylch cynnwys yr adran Canmoliaeth a 
Chwynion i'r swyddogion.  
 
Mynegwyd siom y byddai'r sesiwn briffio arfaethedig yn cael ei chynnal yn y 
prynhawn gan ei bod yn anodd i aelodau etholedig oedd yn gweithio ac oedd â 
phlant oedran ysgol i ddod i'r sesiwn.  
 
Cytunodd yr Ymgynghorydd Cynorthwyol i adrodd nôl sylwadau gan aelodau i'r 
swyddogion perthnasol.   
 
PENDERFYNWYD derbyn yr adroddiad. 
 
 

9. EGLURHAD YNGHYLCH PEIDIO Â CHYFLWYNO ADRODDIADAU CRAFFU 

 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL bod y rhesymau dros beidio â chyflwyno'r 
Adolygiad o'r Polisi Hapchwarae a'r Adolygiad o'r Polisi Trwyddedu, yn cael 
eu nodi.  
 
 

10. Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU – DIOGELU'R CYHOEDD A'R AMGYLCHEDD: Y 

DIWEDDARAF YNGHYLCH CAMAU GWEITHREDU AC ATGYFEIRIADAU 

 

Bu'r Pwyllgor yn ystyried adroddiad diweddaru a fanylai ar y cynnydd o ran y 
camau gweithredu, y ceisiadau, neu'r atgyfeiriadau oedd wedi deillio o gyfarfodydd 
blaenorol y Pwyllgor Craffu. Trafodwyd y materion canlynol wrth ystyried yr 
adroddiad: 
 
Cyfeiriwyd at y cyfarfod ar y cyd a gynhaliwyd gyda'r Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg a 
Phlant ym Medi er mwyn trafod y cynigion ar gyfer Cynnal Cludiant i'r Ysgol / 
Coleg ar gyfer Myfyrwyr Ôl-16 oed a gofynnwyd pryd y byddai'r mater hwn a'r 
safbwyntiau a fynegwyd gan aelodau'r pwyllgor yn cael eu hystyried gan y Bwrdd 
Gweithredol. Atgoffodd y Pennaeth Trafnidiaeth a Pheirianneg y Pwyllgor fod yr 
ymgynghoriad wedi dod i ben ar 10 Tachwedd 2015 ac y byddai'r holl sylwadau a 
ddaeth i law yn cael eu hystyried ac y byddent yn llunio rhan o'r adroddiad terfynol. 
Byddai rhan o'r broses hefyd yn cynnwys diweddaru'r Asesiad o'r Effaith ar 
Gydraddoldeb.  
 
Yn ateb i gwestiynau pellach am y broses ymgynghori, atgoffodd y Pennaeth 
Trafnidiaeth a Pheirianneg a'r Pen-swyddog Busnes a Datblygu y Pwyllgor fod 
croeso i'r holl aelodau ddod i'r nosweithiau agored a gynhaliwyd yn ysgolion 
uwchradd a champysau addysg bellach y sir a bod newyddlen ac e-bost yn rhoi 

Tudalen 49



 
 

 
 

gwybod i'r aelodau etholedig am y broses, wedi'u cylchredeg yn Hydref 2015. 
Fodd bynnag, roedd croeso i'r aelodau etholedig gysylltu â swyddogion os 
dymunent drafod neu egluro unrhyw faterion yn ymwneud â'r broses ymgynghori.  
 
Cyfeiriwyd at y gwrthwynebiad parhaus a fynegwyd gan aelodau etholedig yn 
erbyn cynigion i godi tâl ar sefydliadau addysg am gludiant. Roedd y Pennaeth 
Trafnidiaeth a Pheirianneg yn cydnabod bod yr aelodau etholedig yn teimlo'n gryf 
am hyn ond atgoffodd y Pwyllgor am gyd-destun y cynigion, sef y gostyngiad o 
£39 miliwn mewn refeniw a oedd yn wynebu'r Awdurdod Lleol. Roedd strategaeth 
y gyllideb a gytunwyd gan y Cyngor yn Chwefror 2015 yn cynnwys y cynnig hwn yr 
oedd ymgynghori yn ei gylch ar hyn o bryd ond byddai'n rhaid i unrhyw newid yn y 
polisi gael cymeradwyaeth y Cyngor Sir cyn y gellid ei weithredu.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD nodi'r adroddiad. 
 
 

11. LLOFNODI BOD COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR A GYNHALIWYD 

AR 18FED MEDI 2015 YN GOFNOD CYWIR 

 

PENDERFYNWYD llofnodi cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ddydd Gwener 
18fed Medi 2015 yn gofnod cywir.  
 
 

12. LLOFNODI BOD COFNODION CYFARFOD AR Y CYD Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU 

– DIOGELU'R CYHOEDD A'R AMGYLCHEDD A'R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU – 

ADDYSG A PHLANT A GYNHALIWYD AR 18FED MEDI 2015 YN GOFNOD 

CYWIR 

 
PENDERFYNWYD llofnodi cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ddydd Gwener 
18fed Medi 2015 yn gofnod cywir. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________    __________________ 
CADEIRYDD       DYDDIAD 
 

Tudalen 50



ENVIRONMENTAL & PUBLIC PROTECTION  

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

11
th

 DECEMBER 2015 

 
MAE’R FERSIWN CYMRAEG YN CAEL EI GYFIEITHU AR HYN O BRYD 

 
Present: Councillor A.P. Cooper (Chair) 

 
Councillors: 
 
 

A. Davies, J.A. Davies, D.C. Evans, I.J. Jackson (Vice-Chair), J.P. 
Jenkins, W.G. Thomas, D.E. Williams 
 

Councillor D.J.R. Bartlett – Substitute for Councillor K.P. Thomas 
Councillor W.T. Evans – Substitute for Councillor W.J. Lemon  
Councillor T. Theophilus – Substitute for Councillor D.B. Davies 
 
Also in attendance: 
 
Councillor H.A.L. Evans – Executive Board Member for Technical Services  
Councillor D.M. Jenkins – Executive Board Member for Resources  
Councillor T.J. Jones – Executive Board Member for Environmental & Public Protection   
 
In attendance as an observer: Councillor J.D. James 
 
The following officers were in attendance: 
 
Mrs. R. Mullen – Director of Environment  
Mr. O. Bowen – Interim Head of Financial Services  
Mr. S. Pilliner – Head of Transport & Engineering  
Ms. R. James – Group Accountant 
Mr. E. Jones – Principal Licensing Officer  
Ms. K. Thomas – Community Safety Manager  
Mrs. S. Watts – Public Health Services Manager 
Mr. A. Williams – Street-Scene Manager 
Mr. M. Hughes – Assistant Consultant 
 
Venue: Spilman Street Chamber, Carmarthen (10:00 – 11:45am)   
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Daff Davies, Andrew James, 
Winston Lemon, Alan Speake and Keri Thomas. 
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTEREST  
 

Councillor  Minute Item(s) Nature of Interest 

 
J.P. Jenkins 

 
8. Review of Gambling Policy 

 
Works in the gambling 
industry.  

 
  

Eitem Rhif  10

Tudalen 51



3. DECLARATION OF PROHIBITED PARTY WHIPS 
  
 There were no declarations of party whips.  
 
 
4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
No public questions were received.  

 
 
5.  FORTHCOMING ITEMS  

 
RESOLVED that the list of forthcoming items to be considered at the next 
scheduled meeting on Monday 11th January 2016, be noted.  
 
 

6. REVENUE BUDGET STRATEGY CONSULTATION 2016/17 TO 2018/19 
 
The Committee considered the Revenue Budget Strategy 2016/17 to 2018/19 
(Appendix A) which had been endorsed by the Executive Board for consultation 
purposes at its meeting on 16th November 2015. The Interim Head of Financial 
Services advised that Welsh Government had announced the provisional settlement 
earlier that week (9th December) and that Carmarthenshire would see a 1% cut in 
budget rather than the 3.3% on which the Strategy was based. Whilst the 
settlement would mean an extra £7.5m for Carmarthenshire, most of this additional 
funding would be allocated to cover other requirements such the shortfall in 
efficiency savings and the recently agreed Employees Pay Offer. He added that the 
extent of the Welsh Government’s protection of schools budgets was as yet 
unclear, even though the Council’s strategy had been based on there being no 
protection of school budgets. The Director of Environment and the Public Health 
Services Manager also gave a brief overview of their respective service areas.  
 
The following issues were discussed during consideration of the report: 
 
Reference was made to the Welsh Government’s settlement announcement and it 
was asked whether the figures outlined in the budget strategy would change and if 
so, would this not make consideration of the report irrelevant. The Interim Head of 
Financial Services strongly advised the Committee to consider and comment on the 
proposed efficiency savings and charging digests as delivery of the identified 
savings was essential and these would need to be confirmed early in the New Year. 
Deferring the report would not allow sufficient time for this.  
 
Reference was made to the Environment Department’s Policy & Performance 
Division and it was asked whether this, as an administrative function costing in 
excess of £900,000, should also be bearing significant efficiency savings when 
front-line services were being reduced or cut. The Director of Environment 
reminded the Committee that in order for the department to operate successfully, 
there would always be a need for a back-office function. However, there were 
always opportunities to make such functions more efficient and that this would be 
looked at as part of other corporate initiatives to rationalise back-office services, 
systems and infrastructure.   
 
It was suggested that there was a dichotomy between the information presented in 
the report relating to public lighting and the information provided to members at the 

Tudalen 52



Environment departmental budget session earlier in the week. It was claimed that 
whilst the report stated that the proposal was to reduce operating costs without 
turning lights off, the information at the seminar indicated that the savings might not 
be achieved and would result in total shut-off of the public lighting system. The 
Street-Scene Manager clarified that the Welsh Government Invest to Save funding 
would be used to install LED lighting and timers for part-night illumination during the 
first two years. The scheme would then be evaluated to assess the extent of its 
success against expected outcomes. The Director of Environment added that the 
business case had been developed on the basis that the savings would be realised 
but an evaluation would still be required after two years.  
 
It was asked whether the managed car pool system savings of £200,000 would be 
achieved if other departments did not sign up to the scheme and clarification was 
sought as to how the pool cars were monitored to prevent misuse. The Head of 
Transport & Engineering informed the Committee that staff mileage in the current 
year had reduced significantly and the proposal was to roll-out a managed pool car 
scheme per building/site across the Authority to assist with the savings target and 
this would impact on all departments. The business case included a proposal to fit 
the pool cars with a GPS tracking system to monitor performance and active 
monitoring of mileage was required. Approximately 75% of the Authority’s existing 
vehicle fleet was already fitted with tracking devices.  
 
Reference was made to the proposal for charging for post-16 transport and it was 
suggested that it should not be included in the budget report prior to the findings of 
the recent consultation. The Executive Board Member for Technical Services 
reminded the Committee that this was included in the proposals as it had been 
passed as part of the 2015/16 budget by County Council in February 2015. The 
Head of Transport & Engineering acknowledged elected members’ feelings on this 
issue but reminded the Committee that officers were seeking to sustain the service 
for a modest charge of circa £5.60 per week and that following the extensive 
consultation, a report would be presented to elected members in due course. The 
Director of Environment noted that if the charge was not introduced, there would be 
a £516,000 gap which would need to be found. This might lead to a removal of the 
service completely. The proposal presented, sought to avoid this.  
 
It was suggested that the annual budgetary proposals were about what the Council 
wanted rather than what residents needed and that there was no reference to 
opportunities to income generate. The Director of Environment noted that the 
proposals did include some income-generating proposals but it was an option that 
should be given more consideration.   
 
It was asked what alternatives were in place for schools who faced not only cuts to 
their budgets but the loss of a school crossing patrol operative. The Executive 
Board Member for Technical Services reminded the Committee that assessments 
were made for all schools and where a road was deemed safe and a patrol was not 
required, such positions would not be re-advertised. However, no existing patrols 
were being removed. The Head of Transport & Engineering informed the 
Committee that where the was a vacancy, the Authority would always seek to 
recruit and when there had been difficulties covering absence due to illness or 
leave, schools and Police Community Support Officers had been contacted to 
provide assistance. In response to an additional suggestion that teaching staff could 
undertake crossing patrol duties, the Head of Transport & Engineering confirmed 
that the Authority’s insurance would indemnify school staff if they were required to 
undertake such duties on behalf of the Authority. He added that the assessments 

Tudalen 53



for the respective school sites (a Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents 
assessment template), could be made available to local members if required. 
 
Concern was expressed at the effects of global warming and reference made to the 
recent flooding in Cumbria. It was also suggested that the lack of specialist vehicles 
to maintain and empty gullies and culverts could also lead to unnecessary flooding 
in some areas of the county. The Street-Scene Manager clarified that the proposals 
outlined in the report would affect the provision of new works, but much of the 
County’s flood defence infrastructure has been upgraded to modern standards over 
the past 10-15 years. Routine maintenance works on the existing defences would 
continue to be prioritised and the further development of flood risk plans would 
allow the Authority to target resources where required.   
 
It was asked whether the current task and finish review of car parking charges 
would have any impact on the proposed 20p increase in car parking charges, 
outlined in the report. The Executive Board Member for Technical Services stated 
that this was also included in the proposals as it had been passed as part of the 
2015/16 budget by County Council. Upon taking on her portfolio, she had requested 
that this not be implemented in 2015/16 and wished to wait for the Task and Finish 
Group to make its proposals.  
 
Serious concerns were expressed at the state of the county’s highways and 
bridges, the backlog of work that faced the Authority and its continued poor 
performance in respect of key performance indicators. It was also suggested that 
the Authority would be open to litigation due to poor maintenance of its 
infrastructure and it was asked when the corporate manslaughter development 
session, requested in a previous meeting, would be provided for elected members. 
The Executive Board Member for Technical Services acknowledged the concerns 
but reminded the Committee that Carmarthenshire did have the second longest 
highway network in Wales and that whilst it appeared that highway services were 
being reduced, officers were seeking to work in more effective and efficient ways in 
order to minimise the effect on these front-line services. The Assistant Consultant 
informed the Committee that its request for a development session had been 
included on the Elected Members’ Development Programme but that a date had yet 
to be finalised. He agreed to clarify this with the Learning & Development Unit.    
 
In response to a question on the tendering exercise for future waste and recycling 
services, the Street-Scene Manager informed the Committee that a significant 
amount of work had been undertaken to date, especially in conjunction with the 
Authority’s Legal Services. Whilst no further details could be disclosed at this stage, 
the interim contract with CWM Environmental was still in place and he assured 
members that progress was being made with respect to scoping and preparatory 
work to provide valuable information to inform the debate with regard to the best 
solution for the future.  
  
Concern was expressed at the potential 25% reduction in the Sustainable Waste 
Management (SWM) Grant and how this would impact on the Authority’s ability to 
meet the Welsh Government’s expectations in relation to reducing waste and 
increasing recycling. The Interim Head of Financial Services noted that at the time 
of writing, the forecast had been up to 25% but recent indications were now of a 
6.5% reduction (approximately £250,000) for Carmarthenshire.  
 
It was suggested that the information provided in relation to the pumping stations in 
Appendix A(ii) was insufficient and further detail was requested. The Director of 

Tudalen 54



Environment informed the Committee that officers had since been in discussions 
with Welsh Water which would now carry out the work on behalf of the Authority 
and meant that these pressures would not now be as great. Discussions were on-
going but more details could be provided for the Committee in due course.  
 
It was asked why the Authority was continuing to fund CCTV operations as 
members were of the understanding that this service had ceased. The Community 
Safety Manager reminded the Committee that whilst the Executive Board had 
decided to cease ‘live’ monitoring of the cameras, it had made a commitment to 
cover on-going costs relating to the operation of the cameras, namely the electricity 
and links. The Police were able to review the recordings taken by the cameras 
should they be required in conjunction with a particular incident. However, the 
Police’s contribution in the future had yet to be determined due to a Force review of 
the future use of CCTV. The Authority did not have any contractual agreements with 
the cameras’ manufacturers/suppliers but a legal agreement between itself and the 
Police was being drafted in order to clarify the roles, responsibilities and financial 
contribution of each organisation in the future.    
 
Reference was made to licence fee increases as it had been noted in a previous 
meeting that these would be reviewed. The Public Health Services Manager 
reminded the Committee that due to previous legal challenges brought against 
other local authorities, the Authority could only charge fees to cover the cost of its 
work and was not permitted to make a profit. She also reminded the Committee that 
this was the subject of the next item on the agenda.  
 
Clarification was sought as to the funding prognosis for the Bwcabus service and its 
future operations. The Head of Transport & Engineering acknowledged that this 
was a flagship service and dialogue with the Welsh Government was on-going in 
order to secure future funding. A detailed report was also being prepared for the 
relevant minister.  
 
In response to a question about fees for sports pitches, the Executive Board 
Member for Technical Services informed the Committee that a meeting between 
officers and sports clubs representatives was scheduled for January. She believed 
that agreements had been reached with most clubs although there were some 
difficulties with other clubs which had declining memberships (e.g. lawn bowls).     
   
Clarity was sought as to whether vets inspection costs were included within the 
proposed dog breeding and riding establishment fees. The Public Health Services 
Manager stated that there might be specific contracts in place with certain 
veterinary providers for these services but that she would clarify this for the 
Committee.   
 
RESOLVED that the report be received.  
 
 

7. REVIEW OF LOCALLY SET FEES IN THE ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH AND 
LICENSING SECTION  
 
The Committee considered the Review of locally set fees in relation to the 
Environmental Health and Licensing Section which included stakeholders views on 
the proposed fees. The Public Health Services Manager informed the Committee 
that following its consideration by elected members, the proposed hackney carriage 
and private hire fees (outlined in Appendix 1) would be advertised for a period of 28 

Tudalen 55



days, as required by the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 for 
persons to submit objections. However, she noted that whilst the recommendations 
outlined in the report were that the new fees be implemented immediately, the 
political consultation process and period of advertisment would last until the end of 
March and therefore, it would be preferential for the fees to commence from the 1st 
April 2016 at the start of the new financial year. The Committee agreed to this 
proposal.   
 
It was suggested that proposed increase in charges associated with processing 
stray dogs contradicted the comments made in the executive summary which 
suggested that higher charges were in fact deterring owners in neighbouring 
counties from retrieving their dogs. The Public Health Services Manager informed 
the Committee that the increase in the charges was being proposed to reflect the 
dog wardens’ costs as well as kennelling costs. It was then proposed and seconded 
that the ‘first/part day’ charge fee for processing stray dogs should remain at £60 
rather than being increased to £80. Following a vote, the motion was defeated. 
 
It was asked why there was such a significant increase in the charges for safety 
inspections at sports grounds, from no current fee to a proposed charge of £930. 
The Public Health Services Manager informed the committee that the legislation 
relating to this charge only applied to the county’s largest sports grounds/facilities 
(with capacities of 500+) of which there were three: Parc y Scarlets in Llanelli, 
Richmond Park in Carmarthen and the Ffos Las Racecourse. The proposed charge 
had been calculated utilising the relevant fees toolkit.   
 
The Committee RESOLVED to recommend to Executive Board that: 
 
7.1 The proposed hackney carriage and private hire fees in Appendix 1 be 

advertised for a period of 28 days as required by the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 for persons to submit objections. Where 
there are no objections, the fees shall be implemented from the 1st April 
2016.  

 
7.2 The remainder of the fees in Appendix 1 be advertised for a period of 28 

days and that the reviewed fees be implemented from the 1st April 2016.   
 
 
8. REVIEW OF GAMBLING POLICY  

 
Cllr. J.P. Jenkins declared and interest in that he works in the gambling industry. 
 
The Committee RESOLVED to recommend to Executive Board that the amended 
Gambling Policy be approved. 
 
 

9. REVIEW OF STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY (LICENSING ACT 2003)  
 
The Committee considered the Review of Statement of Licensing Policy noting that 
the revised Licensing Policy document reflected the results of the consultation and 
review process. The Public Health Services Manager informed the Committee that 
sufficient evidence had been provided to justify retaining a Cumulative Impact 
Policy in relation to Station Road, Llanelli but that the responses received to the 
consultation justified the formulation of specific proposals for the adoption of a 
similar Cumulative Impact Policy for Lammas Street, Carmarthen and that a further 

Tudalen 56



consultation exercise would be required to look specifically at whether such a 
cumulative impact policy should be adopted.  
 
The Committee therefore RESOLVED that:  
 
9.1 The report be received.  
 
9.2 The amended Statement of Licensing Policy be approved for consideration 

by the Executive Board. 
 
9.3 The existing Cumulative Impact Policy be retained for Station Road Llanelli 

as detailed in Section 10 of the attached policy. 
 
9.4 Further evidence be gathered in relation to the possible adoption of a 

Cumulative Impact Policy for Lammas Street, Carmarthen as a result of 
responses to the consultation exercise. 

 
 

10. EXPLANATION FOR NON-SUBMISSION OF SCRUTINY REPORT 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the reason for the non-submission of the Capital 
Programme Budget Setting 2016/17 – 2020/21 report, be noted.  
 
 
 
SIGNED:  (Chair)  

 
DATE: 

  

 

Tudalen 57



Tudalen 58

Mae’r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol


	Agenda
	5 EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL
	6 UNED CADWRAETH GWLEDIG - DIWEDDARIAD
	Adroddiad

	7 PRIFFYRDD - Y NEWYDDION DIWEDDARAF
	Adroddiad

	8 GRWP GORCHWYL A GORFFEN DIOGELU'R CYHOEDD A'R AMGYLCHEDD 2015/16 - DOGFEN CYNLLUNIO A CHWMPASU
	Adroddiad

	9 LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR, COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR A GYNHALWYD AR Y 12FED O DACHWEDD 2015
	10 LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR, COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR A GYNHALWYD AR Y 11EG O RAGFYR 2015

